llll!llll!l!lllll!IWIIII!IIillllllflllllllllllll

04025220

PO0S

Bnnual Report to Stockholders




- =

May 29, 1911 - February 14, 2004

Parmenas Cox served First National Bank since January 1938 in a variety
of positions from cashier to Senior Chairman of the Board, the position
he held at his retirement in 1997. From January 1944 until his death in
February 2004 he was an active member of the Board of Directors, a
sixty year commitment. Over the years he has been an ambassador for
First National Bank and to many he was “The Bank.” As a community
leader in Pulaski and Giles County, he was involved in numerous
government, civic, and non profit organizations and was recognized for a
lifetime of outstanding service and achievement. Anyone who knew
Parmenas Cox will remember him as a person who was devoted to his
church, family, bank colleagues, friends, and community. He was greatly
loved, respected, and admired making a significant difference in the lives
of all he touched. He was truly a dignified southern gentleman in every
aspect of his life.



In Memory
William F. Gooch

August 3, 1934 - March 5, 2003

Bill Goéch loved God, his family, Giles County and First National Bank.
Bill ser\f/ed as an officer of First National Bank for 24 years, retiring in
1997. Many will remember that Bill was involved with many First
National programs for the Giles County farmers including the bull leasing
program in the 1960s and 1970s. He was instrumental in most of the
construction projects that the bank undertook, such as the Industrial Park
office, the Minor Hill Road office and the Giles Heritage Theatre. Even
after his retirement, he remained with the bank as an overseer of our
expansion needs. His last major project was the new Fayetteville office
which had its Grand Opening in the spring of 2002. Giles County knew
Bill Gooch as a man who always had time to speak and shake your hand.
He is missed.
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First Pulaski
National Corporation

Today’s vision becomes tomorrow’s reality as we
continue the reach for our full potential. Since 1938,
we are living our Mission.

e [o maximize shareholder value as an
- independent community bank.

e To provide superior customer products
‘ and services to the communities we
serve.

e Tocreate a rewarding environment that

-~ offers equal opportunity to all
employees, while maintaining integrity
and professionalism.

e [o provide leadership, which will help

to improve the quality of life for the
citizens of the communities we serve.

e FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




The Mtssun,.

First National Bank is community owned:

First Pulaski National Corporation has 1400 plus
owners, holding over one million, six hundred thousand
shares of stock, in an active market, available for
ownership. We continue to maintain value as an
independent community bank, while maximizing our
sustainable earning capacity in our reach for future
progress. We continue to be dedicated to our ultimate
goal of remaining an independent community bank.

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




Letter to Our Shareholders

To Our Shareholders:

We are pleased to report that 2003 was one of the most profitable years in the history of First Pulaski
National Corporation with assets growing 9.63% to $418,427,656 while profits increased 23.2% to a
record $5,009,835. It is also our pleasure to report the company paid cash dividends of $2,716,699,
equivalent to 54.2% of earnings.

The success achieved in 2003 was the result of remaining true to the Corporate Mission which has served
us so well, for many years. Cur mission begins with the focus on maximizing your wealth as a
shareholder while remaining an independent community bank. By remaining independent, we are able
to meet our customer’s needs with flexibility and one-on-one service. The benefit of following this point
of our mission has been the continual growth in market share and customer loyalty.

The second point of our mission is to provide superior customer products and services. Although our
service level is considered high by most standards, we are constantly searching
for ways to improve not only the quality but the speed of service provided.

The third point of oujr mission, professionalism and integrity, is the hallmark 4 @

of First National Bank. In an age when some organizations have chosen to .

abandon integrity, First National Bank continues to place integrity as the first o, FIRST
criteria for every decision made while delivering our services in a professional b Nj’ﬂONAL\

and friendly manner.i - '-7:,' ANK S

Point number four of our mission is to provide leadership in the communities
we serve. The leadership of First National Bank was evident in 2003 when the
company was selected as the Customer Service Business of the Year by the
Giles County Chamber of Commerce, and the Chamber Member of the Year by
the Lincoln County Chamber of Commerce. Whether we are working with a
penny drive at the local school, or partnering in education, hosting industrial
managers meetings, or working to assist the American Heart Association, the
American Cancer Society or Boy Scouts of America, First National Bank is
setting the standard for leadership in Southern Middle Tennessee.

As we look to 2004, we are committed to meeting the financial service needs
in our communities with an exceptional team of bank professionals addressing
the challenges ahead. While we strive to achieve new levels of excellence, we continue with our
dedication to being an independent community bank.

Thank you for your sfupport and your investment in First Pulaski National Corporation as we remain,
Always First.... For You.

Sincerely, ‘

° z
James T. Cox | Mark A. Hayes
Chairman of the Board President and CEO

S F[RST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION
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1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




The Mission:
- Of Superior Service
First?National Bank is community operated:

Our employees and management team are part of the
fabric of the communities in which we operate, just as
those communities are a part of us. We are personally
affected by the success of these communities and we
serve you with superior awareness, because we are
focused on meeting your needs. We anticipate and meet
any H)usiness or personal financial challenge, while
working with you as your economic needs change. We
are able to do this because we know our customers.

S FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION
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Cox and Curry Awards

It is the belief of our organization that the pursuit of excellence is the single most important
attribute that an employee of First National Bank can possess. Keeping that belief at the front of
our minds, the employees have selected those that meet the criterion in exemplary fashion.

Michelle Brock
Marshall County

Betty Edwards
Lincoln County

Tish Lochridge
Pulaski

Gerry Montgomery Mary Carter Rose
Ardmore Pulaski

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION -
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The Mission.:
1o Provide Opportunity
with Integrity

To our employees, we offer current and frequent
training, keeping each member of our team prepared for
any new technological challenge. Opportunities are also
available for each employee to continue in their own
personal reach for excellence, standing by the First
National Bank promise of educational assistance and
career advancement.

To our customers, we offer superior banking products
and services for our commercial and consumer
customers, unparalleled investment banking and
brokerage services through SmithBarney Investments,
and an experienced and professional mortgage office for
expert home financing advantages.

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




FNB Training Center

Patrick Gilbert and Lyman Cox
LSU School of Banking

L

Clara Burns argd Father Aldon C. Jones
Martin Methodist College Graduation

Mortgage Department
Left to right: Gayle Willoughby, Daphyne Mize, Emily
Pitcock, Kelly Richardson

SmithBarney Investment Center
Phillip Poteet and Tracy Morgan

A F1RST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




The Mission:
For Always Providing

Leadership

Our Board of Directors, Senior Management Team and
Officers lead by example within the Bank, for all our
employees, as well as the entire community. In all
community planning and development as well as
activity, you will find First National Bank holding the
position of leadership. Participation within the
community 1s encouraged and applauded. It is because
of strong leadership that we have a progressive vision
for our future. And by staying rooted in our mission, the
vision of today becomes the reality of tomorrow.

We rely on our emeritus board and community boards
within our market areas to bring us the bounty of their
experience and associations as we follow their example.
With the successful implementation of student advisory
boards we are passing the “leadership torch” to the
generations of the future. This program has served us
well, bringing several participants onto the bank team as
a result. The future looks bright as First National Bank
continues to lead!

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




Board of Directors

Seated (left to right): Bill Yancey, James H. Butler, Mark Hayes, Parmenas Cox, James T. Cox, W. Harwell Murrey, M.D., Wade

Boggs. Standing (left to right): Rand Hayes, Charles D. Haney, M.D., Johnny Bevill, James K. Blackburn, IV, David E. Bagley,
Gregory G. Dugger, D.D.S!

Daivid E. Bagley
'President
Bagley & Bagley Insurance, Inc.

Johnny Bevill
" Owner
Davis & Eslick Market (now retired)

James K Blaclkburn, IV
Real Estate Broker

Wade Boggs
Commercial Rental Property
and Investinents

James H. Butler
Real Estate Broker
Owner, Butler Realty

James T. Cox
'Chairman
First Pulaski National Corporation

Bill Yancey
Farmer

I F1RST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION

Parmenas Cox
Retired Senior Chairman of the Board

Gregory G. Dugger, D.D.S.
Dentist

Charles D. Haney, M.D.
Physician

Mark Hayes
President/CEO
First Pulaski National Corporation

Rand Hayes
Owner, Hayes Properties

W. Harwell Murrey, M.D.
Physician (now retired)




Emeritus Board

Seated (left to right): Morris Ed Harwell, Parmenas Cox,
Joyce Chaffin, William Mittlesteadt. Standing (left to

right): William McNairy, Kenneth Lowry, W.E. Walters,
John Norton

Ardmore Community Board
Front Row (left to right): Wade Boggs, John Curtis,
Willard Whitt, Jim Butler. Second Row: Nick Holland,
Gearil Smith. Third Row: Thomas Rochelle, Glen
Magnusson

Seated (left to right): Debbie Braden, Eugene
Maorris, Fay F. Robinson, Robert H. Wynn. Standing
(left to right): Karen Cardin Spivey, Ken Coleman,
Winston Rod Wells, Mitchell Birdsong, Donnie
Moore, Lyman Brown, James 1. Greene, Linda Lee
Rogers, George “Tommy”Watkins

Lincoln County

Community Board

Seated (left to right): John Meadows, Curtis Ashby, Larry
Stewart, Walter J. Szelich. Standing (left to right): Micky
Lawson, Harold Seals, Robert L. Clark, David Bagley

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




Student Advisory Boards

~ el
:

Ardmore

Front Row (left to right): Colin Blakely, Ashley Colbert,
Cody Broadway, Brooke Tribble, Britany Hambay, Erin
Cornelison. Second Row (left to right): Whitney Slaton,
Sarah Bridges, Ashley Bullock, Kim Phillips, Heather

Billions, Megan Deffenbaugh

Students from Giles County High School, Highland Christian
Academy and Richland High Schobol

Seated (left to right): John Wiseman, Jacob Rose, Beau
Surbaugh, Chase Hargrove, B.J. Shelton, Wes Carter and
Jon Jackson. Standing (left to tight): Chancey Parsons,
Mallory Curry, Matthew Martin, Melaina Whitley, Paul
Ross Hollis, Taylor Wade, Courtney Lovett, Keri Foster,
Niki Gibson, Leah Harwell, Kendylle Cobb

Lincoln County
Seated (left to right): Matt Haney, Radina Creson, Joey
Miller, Crystal Chambiee, Terra Holt, Lauren Jeffries,
Standing (left to right): Amy McDow, Mark Bembry, Rikki
Reavis, Tamara Blankenship, Jason Caldwell, Josh
Caldwell, Emily Wilson, Jessica Quaife, Garret Wyatt, Lori
Beth McDow

Marshall County

Students from Cornersville High School, Forrest High School and
Marshall County High School

Seated (left to right): Brittany Lombardi, Ashley
Bigham, Adam Bunty, Korii Knight, Nicole Rotchford,
Debbie Zimmerle, Katie Mercuri, Dayla Branaman.
Standing (left to right): Amanda Smith, Stacey Greer,
Evan Braytenbah, Will Brown, Drew Ewing, Reed
Hofmann, Eric Walker, Christina Davidson, Lillie Tears,
Josh Johnson, Joey Miiler, Jillian Williams

(S 1R ST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION
PULASKI, TENNESSEE 38478

MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT ON RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of First Pulaski National Corporation and its subsidiaries are responsible for the
content and integrity of the financial statements and all other financial information included in this
annual report. Management believes that the financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis to reflect, in all material
respects, the substance of events and transactions that should be included, and that the other financial
information in the annual report is consistent with those financial statements. The financial statements
necessarily include amounts that are based on management’s best estimates and judgements.

Management is further responsible for maintaining a system of internal accounting controls, designed

to provide resasonable assurance that the books and records reflect the transactions of the Corporation

and that its established policies and procedures are carefully followed. Management reviews and modifies

the system of internal accounting controls to improve its effectiveness, and the system is augmented by

written policies, the careful selection and training of qualified personnel, and a program of internal

audit. Management believes that the system of internal accounting control provides reasonable assurance
- that assets are safeguarded and the financial information is objective and reliable.

Independent public accountants are engaged to audit the financial statements of the Corporation and
issue a report thereon. They have informed management that the audits were conducted in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America that require a review of
and evaluation of internal accounting controls to determine the nature, timing and extent of audit
testing.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, is responsible for providing reasonable assurance
that management fulfills its responsibilities in the preparation of the financial statments and in the
maintenance of the system of internal accounting control. The Audit Committee annually selects the
independent public accountants and submits its selection to the Board of Directors for approval. The
Audit Committee meets with management, the independent public accountants and the internal
auditors, approves the overall scope of audit work and reviews audit reports and findings.

James T. Cox Mark Hayes A%’u/
Chairman of the Board President and CEO

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION



| PUTMAN & HANCOCK
Certified Public Accountants

219 East College Street] 118 North Third Street
PO.Box722 ! PO. Box 724
Fayetteville, Tennessee 37334 Pulaski, Tennessee 38478
(931) 433-1040 (931) 424-1040

Fax (931) 433-9290 | Fax (931)-363-5222
I

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Stockholders and iBoard of Directors
First Pulaski National Corporation
Pulaski, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of First Pulaski National Corporation
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders” equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The consolidated financial
statements give retroactive effect to the merger of First Pulaski National Corporation and Belfast Holding
Company, Inc. and subsidiary (Belfast) on October 17, 2001, which has been accounted for using the
pooling of interests method as described in Note B to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those} standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis f"or our opinion.

In our opinion, finémcial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of First Pulaski National Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and
2002, and the con$olidate1i results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Db, + phssek

Fayetteville, Tennessee
February 11, 2004/
[

lMembers American Institute and Tennessee Society of Certified Public Accountants

B IRST EULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2003 and 2002

ASSETS
2003 2002
Cash and due from banks $ 10,704,103 $ 13,933,354
Federal funds sold 400,000 5,220,000
Total cash and cash equivalents 11,104,103 19,153,354
Interest bearing balances with banks 200,000 -
Securities available for sale 159,906,718 114,161,308
Loans
Loans net of unearned income 228,303,368 233,255,433
Allowance for loan losses (3,448,676) (3,809,625)
Total net loans 224,854,692 229,445,808
Bank premises and equipment 10,104,664 10,292,144
Accrued interest receivable 3,652,339 3,755,962
Other real estate owned 4,328,985 1,129,191
Prepayments and other assets 4,276,155 3,731,963
TOTAL ASSETS $ 418,427,656 $ 381,669,730
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Noninterest bearing $ 50,567,097 $ 45,007,259
Interest bearing 312,023,709 286,240,489
Total deposits 362,590,806 331,247,748
Other borrowed funds 4,639,973 3,562,216
Federal funds purchased 2,217,000 -
Accrued taxes 234,268 369,818
Accrued interest on deposits 1,003,800 891,494
Other liabilities 1,661,977 1,596,205
TOTAL LIABILITIES 372,347,824 337,667,481
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $1 par value; authorized - 10,000,000 shares;
1,651,195 and 1,642,036 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 1,651,195 1,642,036
Capital surplus . 4,876,685 4,656,050
Retained earnings 37,765,041 35,471,905
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net 1,786,911 2,232,258
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 46,079,832 44,002,249
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 418,427,656 $ 381,669,730

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




|
FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

i Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

! 2003 2002 2001
INTEREST INCOME
Loans, including !fees $ 17,847,891 $ 18,685,655 $ 19,959,739
Securities: ‘
Taxable ‘ 3,857,918 4,775,570 5,420,572
Non-taxable ! 1,579,007 1,055,918 971,399
Federal funds sold 108,853 147,289 567,269
Total Interes}t Income 23,393,669 24,664,432 26,918,979
i
INTEREST EXPEN$E
Interest on depo$its:
Transaction ac“counts 269,613 368,133 566,376
Money market deposit accounts 1,278,482 1,421,559 525,490
Other savings deposits 297,524 448,744 420,000
Time certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more 2,348,755 2,754,721 4,448,157
All other time L:ieposits 2,490,445 3,830,776 6,693,884
Borrowed funds' 196,595 138,435 102,379
Total Interest Expense 6,881,414 8,962,368 12,756,286
|
NET INTEREST INCOME 16,512,255 15,702,064 14,162,693
|
Provision fojr loan losses 1,520,318 1,614,345 1,047,196
NET INTER}]EST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES 14,991,937 14,087,719 13,115,497
!
OTHER INCOME |
Service charges on deposit accounts 2,166,788 2,144,233 2,301,355
Commissions and fees 493,553 460,332 588,480
Other service charges and fees 261,685 209,502 217,128
Security gains net 227,739 260,201 372,418
Gains (losses) oni sale of other assets, net 148,746 (51,948) 19,719
Dividends 1 81,541 97,325 94,392
Mortgage bankirilg fees 789,150 491,686 274,601
Total Other ;Income 4,169,202 3,611,331 3,868,093
OTHER EXPENSES
Salaries and ernp;loyee benefits 6,727,978 6,375,617 5,719,319
Occupancy expense, net 1,182,152 1,140,370 1,096,445
Furniture and ecfuipmeni: expense 871,403 1,078,718 847,626
Advertising and {pubhc relations 536,070 551,669 523,918
Other operating jexpensers 2,628,330 2,612,653 2,574,245
Total Other Expenses 11,945,933 11,759,027 10,761,553
|
Income befo;re income taxes 7,215,206 5,940,023 6,222,037
Applicable income taxes 2,205,371 1,873,758 1,967,525
NET INCOME $ 5,009,835 $ 4,066,265 $ 4,254,512
Earnings per common share:
Basic | $ 3.05 $ 2.49 $ 2.61
Diluted | $ 3.0 $ 247 % 2.60

|
The accompanying not:es are an integral part of these financial statements.

|
T [IRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities-
Provision for loan losses
Depreciation
Amortization and accretion of investment
securities, net
Deferred income tax expense
Gain on sale of other assets
Security (gains) losses, net
Loans originated for sale
Proceeds from sale of loans
Decrease in interest receivable

(Increase) in prepayments and other assets

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest on deposits

)

(
Increase (decrease) in accrued taxes
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Cash Provided by Operating Activities, net

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of securities available for sale
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale

Proceeds from maturities of securities available for sale

Increase in interest bearing balances with banks
Net increase in loans

Capital expenditures

Proceeds from sale of other assets

Cash Used by Investing Activities, net

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from borrowings

Borrowings repaid

Federal funds purchased

Net increase in deposits

Cash dividends paid

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Common stock repurchased

Cash Provided by Financing Activities, net

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH, net
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION

2003 2002 2001
$ 5009835 $ 4066265 $ 4,254,512
1,520,318 1,614,345 1,047,196
927,807 1,099,330 893,450
610,906 394,499 (21,566)
166,331 (232,489) 18,612
(148,746) 51,048 (19,719)
(227,739) (260,201) (372,418)
(27,666,250) (17,971,329) (9,181,380)
27,683,850 18,382,429 8,524,383
103,623 344,112 121,024
(544,192) (411,465) (1,387,331)
112,306 (565,104) (1,344,683)
(135,550) 369,818 (275,164)
124,441 (975,344) 1,604,444
7,536,940 5,906,814 3,861,360
(125,895,514) (50,923,959) (64,184,617)
5,563,244 5,724,410 19,868,460
73,533,346 47,724,725 28,819,759
(200,000) - -
(146,596) (26,825,851) (11,884,780)
(784,169) (315,052) (3,890,382)
192,588 329,582 120,042
(47,737,101) (24,286,145) (31,151,518)
1,400,000 2,346,000 -
(322,243) (239,399) (202,890)
2,217,000 - -
31,343,058 14,613,711 36,557,395
(2,716,699) (2,699,298) (2,597,261)
356,841 585,478 582,312
(127,047) (502,865) (510,747)
32,150,910 14,103,627 33,828,809
(8,049,251) (4,275,704) 6,538,651
19,153,354 23,429,058 16,890,407
$ 11,104,103  $ 19,153,354  $ 23,429,058

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




FIRS?:F PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY

Shares

Common Stock

Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Capital Retained

Amount Surplus Earnings

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive

Income (Loss), net Total

Balance at December 31,2000 1,623,522

Comprehensive income:

I
Netincome ‘ -
|

Change 'munrealizeh
gains (losses)on AiFS
securities.netofta)i( -
Less reclassification
adjustment.netofifcome
taxof$ 126,622 |
|
Comprehensive incom;e
|
Cash dividends paid $ ‘157

pershare i

\

. |
Commonstock issued
|

Commonstock repurqhased (10,272}

19,524 .

$ 1623522 $ 4,520,386 $ 32447687

4254512

- ) (2.597.261)
19,524 562,788 -

(10,272) (500,475)

$ 640,804 $39.232,399

1,019,764 -

(245.769) -

- 5,028,507

- (2,597.261)
- 582312

(510,747)

Balnce at December 31,2001 1632774

Comprehensive incom_}e:
Netincome ‘

|

Change in unrealize}d

gains (losses)on AFS

securities,netof!a%( -

i L
Less reclassnf[cuuo‘n

adjustment,netofincome
taxof $88.468

Comprehensive incorn:e -
|
Cash dividends paid $ 165
pershare

|

I
Commonstock issuet:.l 19.325

|

I

Commonstock repurchased (10,063}

1632774 4,582,699 34,104,938

4066,265

(2699,298)
19,325 566,153 -

(10,063) (492,802) -

1414799 41735210

989.192 -

(171733) -

- 4,883,724

- (2,699,298)
- 585,478

- (502,865)

Balance at December 31,2002 1642,036

Comprehensive income:

Netincome ' -

Change in unrealize(;i
gains (Josses)on AFS

securities,nelofta)‘( -

o N
Less reclassification
adjustment,netofiﬁcome
|
taxof$77.431

|
|
- |

Comprehensive income -

Cash dividends paid $ 165
pershare }
i
Commonstock issue(:i 11,738
i

Commonstock repurc;hased (2,579)

1642036 4,656,050 35471905

5,009,835

- (2,716,699)
1,738 345,103 -

2.579) (124,468) -

2232258 44,002,249

(295.039) -

(150,308) -

- 4,564,488

- (2.716,699)
. 356,841

- (127,047)

Balance at December 31,2003 1651195

$ 1654195 $ 4,876,685 $ 37.765.041

S 786,911 $ 46,079.832

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

First Pulaski National Corporation (the “Corporation”) through its subsidiaries provides domestic financjal and
insurance services in Giles, Marshall and Lincoln County, Tennessee, to customers who are predominantly small
and middle-market businesses and middle-income individuals. The accounting and reporting policies of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America and to general practice within the financial services industry. The accounting policies of the Corporation
and the methods of applying those policies that materially affect the accompanying financial statements are
presented below.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of First Pulaski National Corporation and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. Certain amounts
in the prior years’ financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2003 presentation. These
reclassifications are immaterial and had no effect on net income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes. The most significant estimate relates to the adequacy of the allowance for
losses on loans. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Due From Banks

Included in cash and due from banks are legally reserved amounts which are required to be maintained on an
average basis in the form of cash and balances from the Federal Reserve Bank and other banks. The average
amount of those reserve requirements was approximately $4,389,000 and $3,743,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002. From time to time throughout the year, the balances due from other financial
institutions exceeded FDIC insurance limits. Management considers this to be a normal business risk.

Statements of Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents as presented in the consolidated statements of cash flows include cash and due from
banks and federal funds sold. Cash flows from operating activities reflect interest paid of $6,770,233, $9,529,853 and
$14,100,969 and income taxes paid of $2,340,007, $1,975,000, and $2,233,229 for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Securities

Securities are classified at the time of purchase as either held to maturity or available for sale. The Corporation
defines held to maturity securities as securities for which management has the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity. Held to maturity securities are carried at amortized cost. Securities available for sale represent those
securities intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, including securities that management intends to use
as part of its asset/ liability strategy, or that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates, changes in prepayment
risk, the need to increase regulatory capital or other similar factors. Securities available for sale are carried at fair
value. Unrealized holding gains and losses for available for sale securities are reported, net of tax, in other
comprehensive income. The amortized cost of all securities is adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion
of discount to maturity or earlier call date if appropriate. Such amortization and accretion is included in interest
income from securities. Gains and losses from sales of available for sale securities are computed using the specific
identification method.

Mortgage Banking

The Corporation originates first-lien mortgage loans for the purpose of selling them in the secondary market. Mortgage
loans held for sale are recorded at cost, which approximates market value. Gains and losses realized from the sale
of these assets are included in noninterest income. Servicing rights related to the mortgages sold are not retained.
Loans include loans held for sale at December 31, 2003 and 2002, totaling $703,900 and $721,500, respectively.
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FIRST ;PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NDTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A - Summary of !Signiﬁ(fant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans are reported at the principal amounts outstanding, net of unamortized nonrefundable loan fees. Deferred net
fees are recognized in loan interest income and fees over the loan term using a method that generally produces a
level yield on the unpaid loan balance.

Impaired loans are spe“cifically reviewed loans for which it is probable that the creditor will be unable to collect all
amounts due according to the terms of the loan agreement. Impairment of a loan is measured by comparing the
recorded investment 1p the loan with the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. A valuation allowznce is provided to the extent that the measure of the impaired loan is less than the

) |
recorded investment. -

Nonaccrual loans are those for which management has discontinued accrual of interest because there exists significant

uncertainty as to the fu‘ll and timely collection of either principal or interest or such loans have become contractually
past due 90 days w1th respec to principal or interest unless such loans are well secured and in the process of

collection.

Interest income is accrued principally on a simple interest basis. Payments received on impaired loans for which the
ultimate collectibility of principal is uncertain are generally applied first as principal reductions. Interest collections
on nonaccrual loans for which the ultimate collectibility of principal is uncertain are applied as pr1nc1pa1 reductions.
Otherwise, such collectlons are credited to income when received.
The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level which is considered to be adequate to reflect estimated credit
losses for specifically 1dent1f1e:1 loans as well as estimated probable credit losses inherent in the remainder of the
loan portfolio at the balance sheet date. The allowance is increased by the provision for loan losses, which is charged
against current period|operating results and decreased by the amount of charge-offs, net of recoveries. A formal
review of the allowance for loan losses is prepared quarterly to assess the risk in the portfolio and to determine the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. The Corporation’s methodology for assessing the appropriateness of the
allowance consists of several elements, which include the formula allowance, specific allowances and the unallocated
allowance. |
The formula allowance is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans and certain unused commitments.
For purposes of the quarterly review, the loan portfolio is separated by loan type, and each type is treated as a
homogeneous pool. Each loan is assigned a risk rating by loan officers using established credit policy guidelines.
These risk ratings are |periodically reviewed and all risk ratings are subject to review by an independent Credit
Review Department. Each risk rating is assigned an allocation percentage which, when multiplied times the dollar
value of loans in that risk category, results in the amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated to these loans.
Allocation percentages are based on the Corporation’s historical loss experience and may be adjusted for significant
factors that, in management’s judgement, affect the collectibility of the portfolio as of the evaluation date.

|
Specific allowances are|established in cases where management has identified significant conditions or circumstances
related to a credit that management believes indicates the probability that a loss has been incurred in excess of the
amount determined by: the application of the above formula. Every nonperforming loan in excess of $25,000 and all
loans classified as “Other Assets Especially Mentioned” over $100,000 are reviewed quarterly by the Board’s Executive
and Loan Committee t{‘o revievs the level of loan losses required to be specifically allocated.

The unallocated allow:*ance is based upon management’s evaluation of various conditions that are not directly
measured in the determination of the formula and specific allowances. The conditions evaluated in connection with
the unallocated allowa‘nce may include existing economic and business conditions affecting the key lending areas of
the Corporation, credlt quality trends, collateral values, loan volumes and concentrations and specific industry

conditions.

|
|
i
|
|
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and
amortization are computed on the straight-line and various accelerated methods at rates calculated to amortize the
cost of assets over their estimated useful lives. Cost of major additions and improvements are capitalized.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Estimated useful lives are twenty to
thirty nine years for premises and five to seven years for equipment. No interest was capitalized in 2003, 2002 or
2001.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
The Corporation periodically reviews long-lived assets. If indications of impairments exist and if the value of the
assets is impaired, an impairment loss would be recognized.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned consists of properties acquired through foreclosures and premises not used for business
operations. These properties are valued at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. Cost includes loan
principal, accrued interest, and foreclosure expense. Estimated net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
an orderly disposition reduced by estimated selling costs and future carrying costs. The excess of cost over net
realizable value at the time of foreclosure is charged to the allowance for loan losses. The estimated net realizable
fair value is reviewed periodically and any write-downs are charged against current earnings as market adjustments.

Stock-Based Compensation

SFAS No. 123, “ Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” defines a fair value based method of accounting for an
employee stock option or similar equity instrument. However, SFAS No. 123 allows an entity to continue to measure
compensation costs for those plans using the intrinsic value based method of accounting prescribed by APB Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”. The Corporation has elected to continue to measure
compensation cost for its stock option plans under the provisions in APB Opinion 25. Accordingly, no stock-based
compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all options granted had an exercise plan equal to or greater than the
market price of the underlying common stock at date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net
income and earnings per share if expense was measured using the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement
No. 123.

2003 2002 2001

Net income as reported $ 5,009,835 $ 4,066,265 % 4,254,512
Deduct: Stock based compensation expense
determined under fair value based method 12,814 17,490 54,865

$ 4,997,021 $ 4,048,775 $ 4,199,647
Basic earnings‘per share as reported $ 3.05 $ 249 $ 2.61
Pro-forma basic earnings per share 3.04 248 2.57
Diluted earnings per share as reported 3.03 247 A 2.60
Pro-forma diluted earnings per share 3.02 2.46 2.57

Using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, the estimated weighted-average fair value assumptions of options
granted during 2003, 2002, and 2001 are as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Average Fair Value Assumptions:
Expected dividend yield 4.4% 5.3% 5.0%
Expected volatility 12.0% 12.0% 12.0%
Risk-free interest rates 3.9% 4.5% 4.0%
Expected lives 2 years 2 years 4 years
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FIRST }PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NpTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|
Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)
Advertising Costs ‘
The Corporation experises the costs of advertising when these costs are incurred.

Income Taxes ‘

The Corporation files ajconsolidated Federal income tax return with its subsidiaries. Income tax expense is allocated
among the parent compiany andl its subsidiaries as if each had filed a separate return. The provision for income taxes
is based on income reported for consolidated financial statement purposes and includes deferred taxes resulting
from the recognition of| certain revenues and expenses in different periods for tax reporting purposes. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the year in
which those temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled. Recognition of certain deferred tax assets
is based upon management s belief that based upon historical earnings and anticipated future earnings, normal
operations will continue to generate sufficient future taxable income to realize these benefits. A valuation allowance
is established for deferred tax assets when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not, that the asset
will not be realized.

Earnings Per Share
Basic and diluted earniings per share (EPS) are shown on the face of the earnings statement. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the year.

No dilution for any potentially diluted securities is included. Diluted EPS assumes the conversion of all options.

Transfer and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities
Accounting and reporting standards for transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities
is based on an application of a financial-components approach that focuses on control. It distinguishes transfers of

financial assets that arerl sales from transfers of assets that are secured borrowings.

Segments Reporting ‘
Statement of Financial /Accounting Standards No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information” (“SFAS 131”) revises the definition of reportable ‘segments” and the presentation of related disclosures.
The standard focuses dn the identification of reportable segments on the basis of discrete business units and their
financial information tc}) the extent such units are reviewed by an entity’s “chief decision maker” (which can be an
individual or group of irnanagement persons). The Statement permits aggregation or combination of segments that
have similar characteristics. In the Corporation’s operations, the bank and its branches are viewed by management
as being separately iden:tifiable businesses or segments from the perspective of monitoring performance and allocation
of financial resources. Although the bank and its branches operate independently and are managed and monitored
separately, each is substantially similar in terms of business focus, type of customers, products and services. Further,
the bank and the Corporation are subject to substantially similar laws and regulations unique to the banking industry.
Accordingly, the Corp(})ration’s. consolidated financial statements reflect the presentation of segment information

on an aggregated basis|in one reportable segment.
!

Insurance Sub51d1ary‘
Insurance premium and commission income and acquisition costs are recognized over the terms of the related
policies. Losses are rec?gnlzed as incurred.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net income and all other changes in equity during a period except those resulting
from investments by ovxlzners and distributions to owners. Other comprehensive income includes revenues, expenses,
gains and losses that under generally accepted accounting principles are included in comprehensive income but
excluded from net 1ncome Coraprehensive income and accumulated other comprehensive income are reported net

of related income taxes
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

Effect of New Accounting Pronouncements

In June of 2001, The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”.
This statement addressed financial accounting and reporting for business combinations and requires that all business
combinations be accounted for by a single method: the purchase method. The single method approach used in this
statement reflects the conclusion that virtually all business combinations are acquisitions and thus all business
combinations should be accounted for in the same way as are the acquisitions of other assets: based on the values
exchanged. This statement became effective in fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2001. Management determined
that the implementation of SFAS 141 was not material to its results of operations.

In July of 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. This statement requires that
goodwill and certain other intangible assets having indefinite lives no longer be amortized to earnings, but instead
be subject to periodic testing for impairment. This statement became effective for fiscal years beginning after January
1,2002. Management determined that the implementation of SFAS No. 142 was not material to its results of operations.

On October 3, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets”. This statement superseded Statement 121 and provides a single accounting model for long-lived assets to
be disposed of. Although retaining many of the fundamental recognition and measurement provisions of Statement
121, the new rules significantly change the criteria that would have to be met to classify an asset as held-for-sale.
Statement 144 also supersedes the provisions of APB Opinion 30 with regard to reporting the effects of a disposal of
a segment of a business and will require expected future operating losses from discontinued operations to be displayed
in discontinued operations in the period(s) in which the losses are incurred. Management determined that the
implementation of this statement was not material to its financial condition or results of operations.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,”
which became effective beginning January 1, 2003. This statement requires a cost associated with an exit or disposal
activity, such as the sale or termination of a line of business, the closure of business activities in a particular location,
or a change in management structure, be recorded as a liability at fair value when it becomes probable the cost will
be incurred and no future economic benefit will be gained for such cost. Applicable costs include employee termination
benefits, contract termination costs, and cost to consolidate facilities or relocate employees. Management determined
that the implementation of this statement was not material to the Corporation’s results of operations, financial
position, or liquidity.

In October 2002, SFAS No. 147, “ Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions” was issued, which provides guidance
on the accounting for the acquisition of a financial institution and supersedes the specialized accounting guidance
provided in SFAS No. 72, “ Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions.” SFAS No. 147
became effective immediately and requires companies to cease amortization of unidentified intangible assets
associated with certain branch acquisitions. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 147, the amount of unidentifiable intangible
assets previously recorded was reclassified to goodwill. SFAS No. 147 also modifies SFAS No.144, “ Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” to include in its scope long-term customer-relationship intangible
assets and thus subject those intangible assets to the same undiscounted cash flow recoverability test and impairment
loss recognition and measurement provisions required for other long-lived assets. While SFAS 147 may affect how
future business combinations, if undertaken, are accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements, the issuance
of this new guidance currently has no effect on the Corporation’s results of operations, financial position, or liquidity.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and
Disclosure,” which provides guidance on how to transition from the intrinsic value method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation under APB 25 to SFAS No. 123’s fair value method of accounting, if a corporation so
elects. The Corporation is reviewing SFAS No. 148 and has not yet made a decision on the adoption of the fair value
method of recording stock options under SFAS No. 123.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. (FIN) 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” This interpretation expands
the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees
and requires the guarantor to recognize a liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed under a guarantee.
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N¢)TES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A - Summary of éignificant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

Effect of New Account!ing Pronouncements - (Continued)

FIN 45 clarifies the reqdirements of SFAS No. 5, “ Accounting for Contingencies,” relating to guarantees. In general,
FIN 45 applies to contra}cts or indemnification agreements that contingently require the guarantor to make payments
to the guaranteed party based on changes in an underlying that is related to an asset, liability, or equity security of
the guaranteed party. Certain guarantee contracts are excluded from both the disclosure and recognition requirements
of this interpretation, including, among others, guarantees to employee compensation, residual value guarantees
under capital lease arrangements, commercial letters of credit, loan commitments, subordinated interests in a special
purpose entity, and guarantee< of a corporation’s own future performance. Other guarantees are subject to the
disclosure requlrement‘s of Fin 45 but not to the recognition provisions and include, among others, a guarantee
accounted for as a derivative instrument under SFAS No. 133, a parent’s guarantee of debt owed to a third party by
its subsidiary or vice Vérsa, and a guarantee which is based on performance not price. The disclosure requirements
of Fin 45 became effective as of December 31, 2002. The requirements of FIN 45 did not have a material impact on

the Corporation’s results of operations, financial position, or liquidity.

|
In January 2003, FASB iésued FIN 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The objective of this interpretation
is to provide guidance on how :o identify a variable interest entity (VIE) and determine when the assets, liabilities,
noncontrolling interest;s, and results of operations of a VIE need to be included in a corporation’s consolidated
financial statements. A corporation that holds variable interests in an entity will need to consolidate the entity if the
corporation’s interest in the VIE is such that the corporation will absorb a majority of the VIE’s expected losses and/
or receive a majority of‘ the entity’s expected residual returns, if they occur. The provisions of this interpretation
became effective upon issuance. Management does not expect the requirements of FIN 46 to have any impact on the

Corporation’s results of} operations, financial position, or liquidity.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “ Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities”. SFAS No. 149, which amends and clarifies existing accounting pronouncements, addresses financial

accounting and reporti‘ng for cerivative or other hybrid instruments to require similar accounting treatment for
contracts with comparable characteristics. This statement became effective for contracts entered into or modified
after June 30, 2003 and for hedging activities designed after June 30, 2003. This statement did not have an impact on
our consolidated fmanClal posiiion, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2003, the FASB %ssued SFAS No. 150, “ Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of
both Liabilities and Equity.” This statement establishes standards for classifying and measuring as liabilities certain
financial instruments that have characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a
financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability, or asset as appropriate. SFAS No. 150 became effective for
financial instruments for interira periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of this statement did not have

a material effect on the!Corporation’s financial position or results of operations or cash flows.
Note B — Mergers and Acquisitions

On October 17, 2001, Flrst Pulaski National Corporation issued 88,124 common shares to acquire Belfast Holding
Company, Inc. and its thoIIy owned subsidiary, the Bank of Belfast. First Pulaski National Corporation exchanged
2.98 shares of its common stock for each share of Belfast Holding Company’s common stock. Belfast Holding
Company, Inc. was a $21.8 million asset financial service holding company headquartered in Belfast, Tennessee,
with a branch office in Lewisturg, Tennessee. The transaction was accounted for as a pooling-of-interests, and,
accordingly, the consol‘idated financial statements have been restated to include the results of Belfast Holding
Company, Inc. for all Rerlods presented. In 2002 the Bank of Belfast was merged into the Corporation’s wholly
owned bank sub51d1ary, First National Bank of Pulaski.
\
First Pulaski National (}Iorporai:ion recorded merger charges of approximately $73,500 in 2001. These charges were

primarily professional ﬁees associated with the acquisition of Belfast Holding Company, Inc.

|
i
|
\
i
\
\
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note C - Securities

The following is a summary of the amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities at December 31:

2003

Available for Sale
U.S. Treasury securities
U.S. Government agencies
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities
Other debt securities

Other securities

2002

Available for Sale
U.S. Treasury securities
U.S. Government agencies
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities
Other debt securities
Other securities

The following is a summary of the amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity

Gross Gross Estimated

Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 100,000 $ - $ - $ 100,000
62,519,505 571,985 152,362 62,939,128
64,510,356 1,400,053 248,501 65,661,908
4,886,766 202,445 - 5,089,211
24,751,602 1,059,278 13,940 25,796,940
393,132 - 73,601 319,531
$157,161,361 $ 3,233,761 $ 488,404 $159,906,718
$ 100,791 $ 522 $ - $ 101,313
40,607,015 1,030,752 - 41,637,767
27,560,761 1,256,837 7,228 28,810,370
10,544,459 260,403 - 10,804,862
30,131,565 1,019,203 78,355 31,072,413
1,801,014 - 66,431 1,734,583
$110,745,605 $ 3,567,717 $ 152,014 $114,161,308

(or average maturity for amortizing mortgage-backed securities) at December 31, 2003:

Duein one year or less

Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years

Due after ten years
TOTAL

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION

Cost

Fair Value

$ 17,222,012
90,430,712
33,892,612
15,616,025

$ 17,424,059
92,480,352
34,253,383
15,748,924

$ 157,161,361

$ 159,906,718




FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NPTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note C - Securities - (¢ontinued)
\

Net gains realized fronzl securities transactions for 2003, 2002 and 2001 were:

Book Gross Realized Net

200? Proceeds Value Gains Losses Realized
Securities sold $ 5,563,244 $ 5,335,505 $227,739 $ - $ 227,739
Securities mature“d orredeemed 73,533,346 73,533,346 - - -
1 $79,096,590 $78,868,851 $227,739 $ - $227,739

200;
Securities sold $ 5,724,410 $ 5,500,000 $224,410 $ - $224,410
Securities mature}d orredeemed 47,724,724 47,688,933 35,791 - 35,791
$53,449,134  $53,188,933  $260201 § - $260,201

2001
Securities sold \ $19,868,460 $19,522,691 $ 368,038 $ 22,269 $ 345,769
Securities mature{‘d or redeemed 28,819,759 28,793,110 26,649 - 26,649

i $48,688,219  $48,315,801 $ 394,687 $ 22,269 $372,418

\
Income tax expense attrlbutal: le to securities transactions was $77,431, $88,468 and $126,622 for 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. j
Securities with a book§ value of $55,839,973 and $34,539,477 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were
pledged to secure public monizs and for other purposes as required or permitted by law.

i
There were no securities of a single issuer, other than U.S. government agency securities that were payable from and
secured by the same squrce of revenue or taxing authority that exceeded 10% of consolidated stockholders’ equity
at December 31, 2003 or 2002.

At December 31, 2003, ‘the Corporation had $35,823,840 of investments with $488,404 of unrealized losses on these
investments, $35,504,309, with the majority of the losses of $414,803, have been at a loss position for less than 12
months and $319,531 of these investments, with losses of $73,601 have been at a loss position for longer than 12

months. The Corporah‘on believes that these securities are only temporarily impaired and that the full principal will

be collected as anticipaTted. Of the total, $20,256,290, or 57%, is guaranteed by the U.S. Government or its agencies.
As of December 31, 2003, $14,705,169 or 41% are obligations of states and political subdivisions. All of the obligations
of states and political subdivisions are investment grade securities. All of the securities with unrealized losses are at
a loss position because|they were acquired when the general level of interest rates were lower or the equity markets
were higher than that on December 31, 2003. The following table summarizes the Corporation’s investments which

were at an unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2003:

‘J Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Obligations of U.S. !
Government Agen‘cies $20,256,290 $ 152,362 - - $20,256,290 $ 152,362
Obligations of Stateg and
Political Subd1v151ons 14,705,169 248,501 - ) - 14,705,169 248,501
Corporate Bonds ‘ 542,850 13,940 542,850 13,940
Other Securities I - - 319,531 73,601 319,531 73,601
|
Total Temporarily Ir‘npaired
Securities { $ 35,504,309 $ 414,803 $ 319,531 $ 73,601 $35,823,840 $ 488,404

—
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note D - Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Credit risk represents the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties
failed completely to perform as contracted and any collateral or security proved to be of no value. Concentrations
of credit risk or types of collateral arising from financial instruments exist in relation to certain groups of customers.
A group concentration arises when a number of counterparties have similar economic characteristics that would
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions.
The Corporation does not have a significant concentration to any individual customer or counterparty. The major
concentrations of credit risk for the Corporation arise by collateral type in relation to loans and credit commitments.
The only significant concentration that exists is in loans secured by real estate and agricultural related loans. Although
the Corporation has a loan portfolio diversified by type of risk, the ability of its customers to honor their contracts
is to some extent dependent upon their regional economic condition. A geographic concentration arises because the
Corporation grants commercial, real estate and consumer loans primarily to customers in Giles, Marshall and
Lincoln County, Tennessee. In order to mitigate the impact of credit risk, management strives to identify loans
experiencing difficulty early enough to correct the problems and to maintain an allowance for loan losses to cover
inherent losses in the loan portfolio.

The following is a summary of loans at December 31:

2003 2002

Construction and land development $ 7,859,110 $ 10,901,052
Commercial and industrial 21,803,243 20,998,593
Agricultural 7,014,272 7,871,559
Real estate loans secured by:

Farmland 19,462,317 24,018,529

Residential property 60,618,473 59,479,195

Nonresidential, nonfarm 84,236,112 78,783,897
Loans to individuals 24,076,726 26,845,282
Other loans 3,473,424 4,659,752

228,543,677 233,557,859
Unearned income (240,309) (302,426)
TOTAL $ 228,303,368 $ 233,255,433

At December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, impaired loans totaled $2,409,729, $7,236,654, and $2,161,873, respectively.
The amount of interest income actually recognized on these loans during 2003, 2002 and 2001, was $96,324, $227,489,
and $68,023, respectively. The additional amount of interest income that would have been recorded during 2003,
2002 and 2001, if the above amounts had been current in accordance with their original terms was $219,738, $280,896,
and $258,474, respectively.

As of December 31, 2003, the Corporation’s recorded investment in impaired loans and the related valuation allowance
are as follows:

Recorded Valuation
Investment Allowance
Impaired Loans-
Valuation allowance required $ 953,758 $ 575,998
No valuation allowance required 1,455,971 -
Total Impaired Loans $ 2,409,729 $ 575,998

The valuation allowance is included in the allowance for loan losses on the balance sheet.
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NpTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note D - Loans and Ailowancle for Loan Losses (Continued)

The average recorded iinvestments in impaired loans for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $3,924,287, $4,831,765
and $1,709,747, respectively. At December 31, 2003, there were no outstanding commitments to advance funds to
customers whose loansi were not performing,.

Loans past due 90 daysj or more and accruing interest were $247,974, $394,898, and $402,425 at December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Certain related parties|(principally directors, including their families and companies in which they are principal
owners) are loan customers of the Corporation’s bank subsidiary. Related party loans are made on substantially the
same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with
unrelated persons and do not involve more than a normal risk of collectibility. The following table summarizes the
changes in related party loans for 2003 and 2002:

|

| 2003 2002
Balejmce at beginning of year $ 1,961,967 $ 1,709,889
Adcﬁiitions 1,847,582 2,185,250
Rep;ayrnents (2,001,779) (1,933,172)
No ilonger related (74,700) -
Balance at end of year $ 1,733,070 $ 1,961,967
Transactions in the allolwance for loan losses were as follows:
i 2003 2002 2001
Balance atbe}ginning of year $ 3,809,625 $ 3,087,586 $ 2,883,621
Less—Charge-‘Joffs:
Real estate|-
Resident;ial 44,791 117,487 80,627
Agricultural 35,580 2,120 -
Other 911,817 71,454 -
Commercial 433,389 334,751 155,636
Agricultural 285,937 84,665 61,006
Individualé and other loans 525,106 611,903 858,262
| 2,236,620 1,222,380 1,155,531
Add-Recoveriies:
Real estate|-
Residential 3,758 4,170 800
Agricultlin‘al : - 2,400 -
Other | 13,984 19,416 -
Commercial 62,900 46,402 66,771
Agricultural 14,244 13,008 25,736
Individuals and other loans 260,467 244,678 218,993
i 355,353 330,074 312,300
Net Charge-offs 1,881,267 892,306 843,231
Add—Provisi(iJn charged to operations 1,520,318 1,614,345 1,047,196
Balanceat er%xd of year $ 3,448,676 $ 3,809,625 $ 3,087,586
Ratio of net c}harge-offs to average
loans outstanding during the year 0.81% 0.40% 0.43%

\
I |
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note E - Bank Premises and Equipment

The following is a summary of bank premises and equipment at December 31:

Accumulated

Depreciation & Carrying

2003 Cost Amortization Amount
Land $ 1,602,757 $ - $ 1,602,757
Buildings 11,863,063 4,765,916 7,097,147
Furniture and equipment 6,091,728 4,708,487 1,383,241
Leasehold improvements 54 959 - 33,440 21,519
TOTAL $ 19,612,507 $ 9,507,843 $ 10,104,664

2002

Land $ 1,584,717 $ - $ 1,584,717
Buildings 11,781,360 4,433,292 7,348,068
Furniture and equipment 6,198,467 4,863,250 1,335,217
Leasehold improvements 54,959 30,817 24,142
TOTAL $ 19,619,503 $ 9,327,359 $ 10,292,144

The following is a summary of non-cancelable minimum operating lease commitments for real property, excluding
cancelable short-term commitments, principally for equipment.

Annual Annual
Year Commitments Year Commitments
2004 $ 27,600 2009 -2013 $ 30,000
2005 27,600 2014 2,500
2006 13,200
2007 6,000
2008 6,000

Rents charged to operations under operating lease agreements for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $28,140,
$32,066 and $71,167, respectively.

Note F - Prepayments and Other Assets

The following is a summary of prepayments and other assets at December 31:

2003 2002

Prepaid expenses $ 184,554 $ 164,621
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 1,264,700 1,214,500
Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost 114,900 114,900
Other investments 369,446 359,000
Investmentin life insurance contracts 1,735,447 1,427,062
Deferred acquisition costs 197,236 206,560
Other 409,872 245,320

TOTAL $ 4,276,155 $ 3,731,963
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note G - Deposits |

|
The following is a summary of deposits at December 31:

1 2003 2002
Nonint:erest bearing: $ 50,567,097 $ 45,007,259
Interest bearing;:

Demand 29,641,857 25,440,397
Savin‘rgs/Money Market 108,213,080 104,205,606
Othex? time 90,558,928 93,740,966
Certificates of deposit $100,000 and over 83,609,844 62,853,520

TO'}TAL $ 362,590,806 $ 331,247,748

The aggregate maturiti:es of time deposits at December 31, 2003, are summarized as follows:

( Year

| Due within 1 year $ 133,756,226
| Due after 1 year through 3 years 23,840,975
f Due after 3 years 16,571,571
| $ 174,168,772
|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

J

\
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|
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note H - Other Borrowed Funds

The following is a summary of other borrowed funds at December 31:

Advances payable to Federal Home Loan Bank: 2003 2002

Dated 11-17-93, matures 12-01-08,

payable $1,682 per month including

interestat5.95% $ 87,123 $ 101,654
Dated 6-22-94, matures 7-01-04, payable

$11,077 per month including interest

at5.95% 76,023 200,379
Dated 10-16-95, matures 11-01-05,

payable $2,750 per month including

interestat 6.70% 59,194 87,197
Dated 2-2-96, matures 3-01-16,

payable $2,237 per month including

interestat 6.50% 226,292 238,008
Dated 2-12-96, matures 3-01-11,

payable $3,087 per month including

interest at 6.25% 215,496 238,289
Dated 4-16-97, matures 5-1-2012, ‘

payable $4,607 per month including

interestat7.40% 345,540 374,093
Dated 2-14-02, matures 3/1/12,

payable $3,881 per month including

interest at 5.46% 537,303 554,036
Dated 2-14-02, matures 3/1/12,

payvable $3,291 per month including

interestat5.46% 455,664 469,854
Dated 10-25-02, matures 11-1-09,

payable $3,152 per month including

interestat4.46% 482,796 498,706
Dated 11-8-02, matures 12-1-12,

payable $2,615 per month including

interestat4.15% 332,817 350,000
Dated 11-12-02, matures 12-1-12,

payable $3,349 per month including

interestat4.09% 427,805 450,000
Dated 3-25-03, matures 4-1-18,

payable $1,176 per month including

interest at4.87% 145,397 -
Dated 10-23-03, matures 11-1-13,

payable $6,779 per month including
interestat 5.09% 1,248,523 -

TOTAL $ 4,639,973 $ 3,562,216
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note H - Other Borrov{red Funds (Continued)
\

The advances are secuired by a pledge of Federal Home Loan Bank stock with a par value of $1,265,300 and a
blanket pledge of $6,263,964 first mortgage loans against single family, 1-4 unit residential properties.
|

Advances payable are jscheduled to mature December 31:

| 2004 $ 304,609
| 2005 239,212

2006 221,935
1 2007 234,625
} 2008 248,070
2009-2013 3,280,448
‘ 2014-2018 111,074
| $ 4,639,973

At December 31, 2003,‘First National Bank of Pulaski had unsecured lines of credit from correspondent banks for
federal fund purchases and daylight overdrafts totaling $30,000,000. At December 31, 2003, $2,217,000 had been

drawn on these lines. |
Note I - Income Taxes|

The components of income taxes for the three years ended December 31 are as follows:

; 2003 2002 2001

Federal ‘
Current $ 1,594,090 $ 1746080 $ 1,545,020
Deferred tax 166,331 (232,489) 18,612
| 1,760,421 1,513,591, 1,563,632
State | 444,950 360,167 403,893

Provisioﬁ for Income Taxes $ 2,205,371 $ 1,873,758 $ 1,967,525

|
Income taxes varied from the amount computed at the statutory federal income tax rate for the years ended
December 31 as follows:

| 2003 2002 2001
|
Federal taxes at statutory rate $ 2453523  $ 2,019,608 $ 2,115,493
Increase (dlecrease) resulting from
tax effect|of:
Tax exempt interest on obligations
_of stétes and political subdivisions (5633,692) (869,634) (358,706)
State income taxes, net of federal
incofne tax benefit 293,667 237,710 266,570
Dividend received deduction - (3,273) (3,796)
Others, net (8,127) (10,653) (52,036)

Provision ﬁor Incorne Taxes $ 2,205,371 $ 1,873,758 $ 1,967,525
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note I - Income Taxes - (Continued)

Significant components of the Corporation’s deferred tax assets and liabilities on December 31 are as follows:

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan losses $ 777,681 $ 966,485
Director benefit plans 149,070 100,126
Merger costs 9,822 13,189
Other real estate 2,662 2,662
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 939,235 1,082,462

Deferred tax liabilities:
Investment securities 38,609 32,573
Statement 115 equity adjustment 958,446 1,183,446
Other securities 163,494 146,426
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,160,549 1,362,445
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities $ (221,314) $ (279,983)

Note J - Other Operating Expenses

The following table summarizes the components of other operating expenses for the years ended December 31:

2003 2002 2001

Directors' fees and expense $ 313,155 $ 323,310 $ 374,112
Stationery and supplies 224948 266,653 261,361
Insurance 148,245 133,054 110,200
Collection and professional fees 245563 322,842 215,182
Postage 161,869 154,278 171,071
Telephone 136,715 146,369 139,951
Other 1,397,835 1,266,147 1,302,368

$ 2,628,330 $ 2,612,653 $ 2,574,245

Note K - Profit Sharing Plan

The Corporation’s bank subsidiary has a non-contributory trusteed profit sharing retirement plan covering all officers
and employees who have completed a year of service and are over the age of 21. The bank subsidiary’s total payroll
in 2003 was $5,097,904. Contributions for the current year were calculated using the salary amount of $4,473,470.
The bank subsidiary’s contribution is based, in general, on 10% of earnings before taxes, not to exceed 15% of the
total salary of all the participants. The plan expense was $672,081, $546,112 and $472,630 in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
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Note L - First Pulaski National Corporation (Parent Company Only) Financial Information

; BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS j
Cash }
Investment in sjubsidiaries, at equity
Other assets |
TOTAL ASSETS
|
LIABILITIES ANd STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Accrued expenses
Total Liabilities
i
Stockholders' Equity
TOTAL ILIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
I
|

i
0

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

December 31,

2003 2002
$ 1,972,916 $ 1,926,509
43,774,483 41,836,654
485,992 342,749
$ 46,233,391 $ 44,105,912
$ 153,559 $ 103,663
153,559 103,663
46,079,832 44,002,249

$ 46,233,391

$44,105,912

‘ Years Ended December 31,

! 2003 2002 2001
INCOME ‘
Dividends from subsidiaries $ 2714875  $ 2,699298  $ 2,587,261
Other dividend}s and interest 80 13,764 73,825
Other ; 1,100 2,575 11,916
; 2,716,064 2,715,637 2,673,002
EXPENSES :
Education 5,124 14,615 12,806
Directors’ fees and expense 70,785 69,965 92,501
Stockholder's meeting 9,839 10,669 15,463
Other | 34,080 32,288 78,197
| 119,828 127,537 198,967
Income before a;‘lplicable income taxes and equity in
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 2,596,236 2,588,100 2,474,035
Applicable incomle tax benefits 30,423 33,223 45,369
Income before equity in vndistributed earnings of
subsidiaries | 2,626,659 2,621,323 2,519,404
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 2,383,176 1,444,942 1,735,108
NET INCOME $ 5,009,835 $ 4,066,265 $ 4,254,512

f
|
|
i
|
|
|

|
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note L - First Pulaski National Corporation (Parent Company Only) Financial Information - (Continued)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 5,009,835 $ 4,066,265 $ 4,254,512
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities -

-Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (2,383,176) (1,444,942) (1,735,108)
Depreciation 2,021 985 876
Increase in other assets (145,265) (133,449) (165,546)
Increase in other liabilities 49,897 49,181 12,679

Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,533,312 2,538,040 2,367,413

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Decrease in loans - - 1,571,555
Investment in subsidiary - - (3,041)
Cash Provided by Investing Activities - - 1,568,514

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Cash dividends paid (2,716,699) (2,699,298) (2,597,261)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 356,841 585,478 582,312
Common stock repurchased (127,047) (502,865) (510,747)
Cash Used by Financing Activities (2,486,905) (2,616,685) (2,525,696)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH, net 46,407 (78,645) 1,410,231
CASH, beginning of year 1,926,509 2,005,154 594,923
CASH, end of year $ 1,972,916 $ 1,926,509 $ 2,005,154

Note M - Regulatory Requirements and Restrictions

The primary source of funds for payment of dividends by the Corporation to its shareholders is dividends received
from its bank subsidiary. The amount of dividends that a bank subsidiary may pay in any year is subject to certain
regulatory restrictions. The amount available for payment of dividends without prior regulatory approval at
December 31, 2003, to the Parent Company was $5,499,581.

The Corporation’s bank subsidiary is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by its primary
federal regulator, the Office of Comptroller of the Currency (OCC). Failure to meet the minimum regulatory capital
requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that if
undertaken, could have a direct material affect on the consolidated financial statements.

Under the regulatory capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the
Corporation must meet specific capital guidelines involving quantitative measures of the Corporation’s assets,
liabilities, and certain off balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Corporation’s
capital amounts and classification under the prompt corrective action guidelines are also subject to qualitative
judgements by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Corporation and the Bank
to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total risk-based capital and Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets (as
defined in the regulations), and Tier I capital to adjusted total assets (as defined). Management believes the
Corporation and the Bank meet all the capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject to as of December
31, 2003.
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Note M - Regulatory Requirements and Restrictions - (Continued)

As of December 31, 2003, the most recent notification from regulatory authorities categorized First Pulaski National
Corporation and First National Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action. To remain categorized as well capitalized, the Corporation will have to maintain minimum total risk-based,
Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios as disclosed in the table below. There are no conditions or events since
the most recent notification that management believes have changed the Corporation’s category.

| To Be Well Capitalized
Under Prompt

For Capital Corrective Action
| Actual Adequacy Purposes Provisions
! Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

1 (Dollars In thousands)
As of December 31, 2003
Total Capital (to‘J risk weighted assets)

Consolidated| $ 47,669 16.71% % 22,825 > 8.00% $ 28,5531 > 10.00%
First National Bank 45,363 15.92 22,793 > 8.00 28,492 > 10.00
Tier I Capital (td risk weighted assets)
Consolidated| 44,220 15.50 11,412 > 4.00 17,119 > 6.00
First National Bank 41,914 14.71 11,397 > 4.00 17,095 > 6.00
Tier I Capital (to average assets)
Consolidatedj 44,220 10.57 16,732 > 4.00 20,915 > 5.00
First Nationa]‘ Bank 41,914 10.03 16,717 > 4.00 20,896 > 5.00
As of December 31, 2002
Total Capital (tg risk weighted assets)
Consolidated| $ 45,233 16.04% $ 22,566 > 8.00% $ 28,207 > 10.00%
First National Bank 43,064 15.28 22,544 > 8.00 28,180 > 10.00
Tier I Capital (to risk weighted assets)
Consolidated| 41,704 14.79 11,283 > 4.00 16,924 > 6.00
First National Bank 39,538 14.03 11,272 > 4.00 16,908 > 6.00
Tier I Capital (to averag: assets) ‘
Consohdated‘ 41,704 11.14 14,971 > 4.00 18,713 > 5.00
First National Bank 39,538 10.57 14,960 > 4.00 18,700 > 5.00

Note N - Stock Optior}1 and Stock Purchase Plans
Under the Corporatio‘n’s stock option and employee stock purchase plans, non-employee directors and bank

subsidiary employees hay be granted options or rights to purchase shares of the Corporation’s common stock.
i

Shares available for griants of options or rights to purchase at December 31, 2003 include 46,042 shares under the
1994 employee purchase plan and 65,000 shares under the 1997 stock option plan.

The 1997 plan perrnitsi the Board of Directors to grant options to key employees. A total of 100,000 shares were
reserved under the plan of which 35,000 shares have been granted and 8,000 shares have been exercised. These

options expire 10 years from the date of grant.
The 1987 plan currently has 5,000 shares under option.

The 1994 outside dlrectors stock option plan permitted the granting of stock options to non-employee directors. A
total of 150,000 shares were reserved under this plan. An option to purchase 500 shares was granted annually upon
becoming a member qf the Board of Directors, of which 250 shares was immediately exercisable and the remaining
250 shares were exerciéable upon the first annual meeting of shareholders following the date of grant provided the
optionee was still servmg as an outside director. In addition, each outside director upon first becoming a board

member received an 1med1ately exercisable option to purchase 2,500 shares, less the number of shares of stock
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Note N - Stock Option and Stock Purchase Plans - (Continued)

previously beneficially owned. These options expired ten years from the date of grant. During the current year the
Board terminated this plan. At the time of termination, 66,160 shares under the plan had not been granted.

The 1994 employee stock purchase plan permits the granting of rights to eligible employees of the Corporation to

acquire stock. A total of 150,000 shares were reserved under this plan. The Board has established the following
guidelines as to the number of shares employees are allowed to purchase on July 1, each year:

Number of Shares

Years of Service Under 10 years Over 10 years
Vice-Presidents and above 200 250
All other Officers 125 175
Non-Officers 75 125

The following is a summary of the stock option and purchase plans activity for 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Stock Option Plans Employee Purchase Plan
Shares Shares Shares

Available Under Available Shares

for Option Option for Purchase Purchased
Balance December 31, 2000 151,410 47,864 74,615 -
Granted {(6,000) 6,000 (11,334) 11,334
Exercised - {8,190) - (11,334)
Previous expired, now reavailable 1,500 (1,500) - -
Balance December 31,2001 146,910 44,174 63,281 -
Granted (6,000) 6,000 (13,720) 13,720
Exercised - (5,138) - (13,720)
Previous expired, now reavailable 250 (250) - -
Balance December 31, 2002 141,160 44,786 49,561 -
Granted (10,000) 10,000 (3,519) 3,519
Exercised - (10,932) - (3,519)
Plan terminated (66,160) - - -
Balance December 31, 2003 65,000 43,854 46,042 -
Exercisable at December 31, 2003 29,354

The weighted-average fair value of options, calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, granted during
2003, 2002 and 2001 is $0.00, $0.00 and $1.77, respectively.
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Note N - Stock Optioﬁ and Stock Purchase Plans - (Continued)

The following table presents the weighted average remaining life and weighted average exercise price at December
31, 2003:

‘i Outstanding Exercisable

| Weighted Weighted Weighted

: Average Average Average

‘ Exercise Price Number Exercisg Price. Remaining Life Number Exercise Price
Employees | $25.60-$49.00 32,000 $ 37.19 5 17,500 $ 32.54
Directors : $25.60-$35.00 11,854 30.85 6 11,854 30.85
QOutstanding at ]jecember 31,2003 43,854 $ 3547 6 29,354 $ 31.86

Note O - Earnings Per|Share
\

!
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

i
j
i

2003 2002 2001

Numerator for basm and diluted earnings

Per share - 1nc0me available to common shareholders $ 5,009,835 $ 4,066,265 $ 4,254,512
1

|
Denominator for basic earnings per share-
weighted-average basis 1,644,008 1,635,777 1,632,054
Effect of dilutive s;tock options 9,935 11,172 4,257

Denominator for diluted earnings per share-

adjusted weight:ed-average shares 1,653,943 1,646,949 1,636,311

! .
Basic earnings pe%r share $ 3.05 $ 249 $ 2.61
Diluted earnings “per share $ 3.03 $ 247 $ 2.60

\
Note P - Fair Values o%f Financial Instruments
SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, requires entities to disclose the estimated
fair value of its f1nanc1al instrument assets and liabilities. Management is concerned that the required disclosures
under SFAS No. 107 may lack reasonable comparability between financial institutions due to the wide range of
permitted valuation techniques and numerous estimates which must be made given the absence of active secondary
markets for many of the financial instruments. This lack of uniform valuation methodologies also introduces a

greater degree of subjectivity to these estimated fair values.

\
The Corporation in estlmatmg its fair value disclosures for financial instruments used the following methods and
assumptions: |

Cash and cash equivalénts: The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and short-term instruments
approximate those assets’ fair values.

|
Securities: Fair values for securities are based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted market prices
are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments.

Loans: For variable—ra}te loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values are
based on carrying values. The fair values for other loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using
interest rates currently|being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality.

— |
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Note P - Fair Values of Financial Instruments - (Continued)

Deposit liabilities: The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and non-interest checking, savings,
and certain types of money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the
reporting date (i.e., their carrying amounts). The carrying amounts for variable-rate, fixed-term money market
accounts and certificates of deposits approximate their fair values at the reporting date. Fair values for fixed-rate
certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently
being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits.

Other borrowed funds: Market quotes are used for Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings.
Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit: The value of the unrecognized financial instruments
is based on the related fee income associated with the commitments, which is not material to the Corporation’s

financial statements at December 31, 2003 and 2002.

The estimated fair values of the Corporation’s financial instruments on December 31 were (dollars in thousands):

2003 2002
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial assets:
Cash and short-term investments $ 11,304 $ 11,304 $ 19,153 $ 19,153

Securities 159,907 159,907 114,161 114,161
Loans 228,303 228,686 233,255 232,892
Less: allowance for loan losses (3,449) - (3,810) -

Financial liabilities:
Deposits 362,591 355,173 331,248 328,922
Other borrowed funds 4,640 4,823 3,562 3,815

Note Q - Other Financial Instruments, Commitments and Contingencies

The Corporation’s bank subsidiaries are a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet-risk in the normal
course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments
to extend credit, standby letters of credit, and residential mortgage loans sold with certain repurchase requirements.
Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
balance sheet. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the bank
subsidiary has in those particular financial instruments.

The following summarizes the bank subsidiary’s involvement in financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk
as of December 31:

Contract or Notional

Amount
2003 2002
Commitments to extend credit $ 32,337,720 $ 26,687,814
Standby letters of credit 1,696,848 661,261
Mortgage loans sold with repurchase :
requirements outstanding 7,749,111 6,681,155

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and
may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon,
the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The bank
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Note Q - Other Finanq‘ial Instruments, Commitments and Contingencies - (Continued)

subsidiary evaluates each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained
upon extension of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation. Collateral held varies but may include
certificates of deposﬁs,}accoums receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and income-producing
commercial properties,|

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the bank subsidiary to guarantee the performance
of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing
arrangements, including commercial paper, bond financing, and similar transactions. The credit risk involved in

issuing letters of creditiis essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers.

|
The bank subsidiary may be reqjuired to repurchase residential mortgage loans sold if a default occurs with respect
to the payment of anyl of the first four installments of principal and interest after a loan is sold and the default
continues for a period of 90 days. These loans are considered in the computation of the allowance for loan losses to
cover future defaults. |

Note R - Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

Selected quarterly resullts of operations for the four quarters ended December 31 are as follows:

! ' Three Months Ended
Mar. 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31

| (in thousands, except per share amounts)

2003
Interest income $ 5793 $ 6016 $ 5820 $ 5767
Interest exper@se 1,763 1,698 1,716 1,704
Net interest income . 4,030 4,318 4,104 4,063
Provision for‘loan losses 353 463 470 234
Other income 956 1,025 1,243 942
Other expense 2,926 3,016 2,990 3,014
Income before income tax 1,707 1,864 1,887 1,757
Income taxes| 504 638 609 454
Net income | 1,203 1,226 1,278 1,303
Earnings pericommon share $ 073 $ 075 $ 078 % 079
Diluted earni“ngs per common share 0.73 .0.74 0.77 0.79
Cash dividen‘ds declared per common share 0.41 0.41 0.41 042
2002 |
Interest income $ 6,246 $ 6,314 $ 6,149 $ 5,955
Interest expehse 2,596 2,325 2,133 1,908
Net interest income 3,650 3,989 4,016 4,047
Provision for loan losses 240 185 305 884
Other income 874 778 1,120 840
Other expense 2,953 3,004 2901 . 2902
Income before income tax | 1331 1,578 1,930 1,101
Income taxes} 416 513 646 299
Netincome i 915 1,065 1,284 802
Earnings per“ commeon share $ 056 3% 065 3% 078 % 050
Diluted earmngs per common share 0.56 0.65 0.78 0.48
Cash d1V1dends declared per common share 0.41 0.41 0.41 0.42
|
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

First Pulaski National Corporation is a one-bank holding company with its only direct subsidiary being First
National in Pulaski, Tennessee. During October 2001, the Corporation acquired Belfast Holding Company
located in Belfast, Tennessee. In April 2002, the Corporation merged the Bank of Belfast, its wholly owned
subsidiary into First National. The Corporation closed its nonbank subsidiary, Heritage Financial of the Tennessee
Valley, Inc., which was a consumer finance company in 2001. On November 1, 2002, the bank formed FNBP
Holdings, Inc (“FNBP Holdings™), which was a corporation organized and existed under the laws of the state
of Nevada. FNBP Holdings only major activity was the ownership of stock in FNBP Investments, Inc (“FNBP
Investments”). FNBP Investments was also formed on November 1, 2002 and was organized and existed under
the laws of the state of Nevada. The principal activity of FNBP Investments was to manage the investment
securities portfolio. Both FNBP Holdings and FNBP Investments ceased operations and were dissolved during
the fourth quarter of 2003.

The following analysis reviews important factors affecting the financial condition and results of operations of
the Corporation for the periods indicated.

This review should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes. Prior
period amounts have been restated to reflect the acquisition of Belfast Holding Company. See Note B in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a more detailed discussion of the acquisition of the Belfast
Holding Company.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements in this discussion may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, (the “Exchange Act”), as amended. The words “expect,”
“anticipate,” “intend,” “should,” “may,” “could,” “plan,” “believe,” “likely,” “seek,” “estimate” and similar
expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements, but other statements not based on historical
information may also be considered forward-looking. All forward-looking statements are subject to risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Corporation
to differ materially from any results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors
include, without limitation, (i) increased competition with other financial institutions, (ii) lack of sustained
growth in the economy in the Corporation’s market area, (iii) rapid fluctuations in interest rates, (iv) significant
downturns in the businesses of one or more large customers, (v) risks inherent in originating loans, including
prepayment risks, (vi) the fluctuations in collateral values, the rate of loan charge-offs and the level of the
provision for losses on loans, (vil) changes in the legislative and regulatory environment and (viii) loss of key
personnel. Many of such factors are beyond the Corporation’s ability to control or predict, and readers are
cautioned not to put undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. In connection with the “safe harbor”
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, the Corporation cautions investors that
future financial and operating results may differ materially from those projected in forward-looking statements
made by, or on behalf of, the Corporation. The Corporation disclaims any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statements contained in this discussion, whether as a result of new information, future events
or otherwise.

OVERVIEW

Management looks at several key performance indicators in evaluating the results of operations of the Corporation
and the Bank. One key item is the volume and quality of loans. The Bank experienced weak loan demand in
2003, leading to a decrease in loans of almost $5 million from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003. The
weak economic conditions prevalent in the Bank’s market area contributed to the weak loan demand, along
with increased credit standard during 2003. Other real estate owned increased by almost $2.1 million from the
end of year 2002 to the end of year 2003, primarily due to commercial real estate loans on which the Bank
foreclosed. One large commercial building comprises over fifty percent of other real estate owned at December

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




‘31, 2003. Managemenjt anticipates that other real estate owned will continue at higher than normal historic
levels until this building is sold. Management is seeking to increase the volume of loans in 2004, but does not
intend to increase cred%it risk to unacceptable levels. Another key item is the growth of deposits, which grew over
$31.3 million in 2003. This increase in deposits coupled with the reduction in loan volume resulted in the $45.7

million increase in inv?stments in 2003.

Net income increased by over $940,000 to $5.01 million in 2003 as compared to 2002, while the net interest
margin fell to 4.60% in 2003 from 4.72% in 2002. Management monitors the Corporation’s net interest
margin closely and strives to maintain the net interest margin above the average net interest margin of the
Corporation’s peer group. Another key contributor to 2003 net income was mortgage loan origination fees
the Bank received whén it generated and sold 1-4 family mortgages. These fees increased by almost $300,000
to $789,150 in 2003 as compared to 2002, primarily due to the large number of refinancings that occurred in
2003. Mortgage refinancing activity began to decline at the end of 2003 and management anticipates that the

mortgage banking fee? will be below 2003 levels in 2004.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting principles we follow and our methods of applying these principles conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States and with general practices within the banking industry. In connection
with the application o:f those principles to the determination of our allowance for loan losses, we have made
judgements and estimates which have significantly impacted our financial position and results of operations.

|
The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that is considered to be adequate to reflect estimated credit
losses for specifically identified loans as well as estimated probable credit losses inherent in the remainder of the
loan portfolio at the balance sheet date. The allowance is increased by the provision for loan losses, which is
charged against current period operating results and decreased by the amount of charge-offs, net of recoveries.
A formal review of the allowance for loan losses is prepared quarterly to assess the risk in the portfolio and to
determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Our methodology of assessing the appropriateness of
the allowance consists of several elements, which include the formula allowance, as well as specific allowances.

|
The formula allowance: is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans and certain unused commitments.
For purposes of the quarterly review, the loan portfolio is separated by loan type, and each type is treated as a
homogeneous pool. Each loan is assigned a risk rating by loan officers using established credit policy guidelines.
These risk ratings are)periodically reviewed and all risk ratings are subject to review by an independent Credit
Review Department. Each risk rating is assigned an allocation percentage which, when multiplied times the
dollar value of loans in that risk category, results in the amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated to
these loans. Allocation percentages are based on our historical loss experience and may be adjusted for significant
factors that, in management’s judgement, affect the collectibility of the portfolio as of the evaluation date.

|

Specific allowances are established in cases where management has identified significant conditions or
circumstances related }to a credit that management believes indicates the probability that a loss has been incurred
in excess of the amount determined by the application of the above formula. Every substandard or worse loan
in excess of $25,000 and all loans criticized as “Special Mention” over $100,000 are reviewed quarterly by the
Executive and Loan qlommitt\:ee of the Bank’s Board of Directors to review the level of loan losses required to
be specifically allocated.

i
For a more detailed description of other accounting policies the Corporation considers significant in the
determination of its results of operations, statement of condition and cash flows, see Note A, Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

|
[
|
|
|

f
|
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Net income for 2003 was approximately $5.01 million or $3.03 per diluted share, compared with approximately
$4.07 million or $2.47 per diluted share in 2002 and approximately $4.25 million or $2.60 per diluted share in
2001. Return on average assets was 1.25% in 2003, 1.10% in 2002 and 1.23% in 2001. The return on average
equity was 11.7%, 9.9% and 10.8% for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Expenses related to the merger of the
Corporation and Belfast Holding Company negatively impacted earnings in 2001 and 2002. Increased depreciation
expenses related to major data and computer systems upgrades by First National in 2001 also negatively impacted
earnings in 2001and 2002. Also, the economic downturn adversely affected a particular large credit, causing a
significant increase in the provision for loan losses in 2002.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income 1is the difference between interest and fees earned on loans, securities and other interest-
earning assets (interest income) and interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds (interest expense). In 2003,
net interest income increased by 5.2% to $16,512,255 from $15,702,064 in 2003, following an increase of 10.9%
in 2002 from $14,162,693 in 2001. The increase in net interest income in 2003 and 2002 as compared to the
previous year was primarily due to the growth experienced by the Corporation, as well as more effective pricing
of loans and deposits by the Corporation. Total assets of the Corporation increased approximately $36.8 million
from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003. Deposits increased approximately $31.3 million, while loans
decreased approximately $5.0 million from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003. Although loans decreased
in 2003 from 2002 levels, the Corporation allocated the increase in deposits to securities, which helped the
Corporation to earn interest on such amounts, leading to the increase in net interest income in 2003 as compared
to 2002. The net increase in net interest income in 2002 was due primarily to growth in the Corporation’s total
assets as well as the types of assets that saw the primary growth. Total assets of the Corporation increased $18.0
million from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002, with loans increasing approximately $24.3 million and
deposits increasing approximately $14.6 million from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002. The higher
growth in loans over deposits contributed significantly to the increase in net interest income in 2002 as compared
to 2001 since loans are the highest yielding asset of the Corporation.

Net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis increased $1,035,000 from 2002 to 2003. This increase
resulted from a $1,279,000 increase due to increased volumes offset by a $244,000 decrease due to changes in
interest rates. The increase in net interest income of $1,620,000 in 2002, on a taxable equivalent basis, as compared
to 2001, resulted from an increase of $2,535,000 due to increased volumes offset by a decrease of $915,000 due
to interest rates remaining at historic low levels.

Net interest income is a function of the average balances of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities

and the yields earned and rates paid on those balances. Management must maintain the spread between the
yields earned and rates paid to maintain an adequate net interest margin.
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The following tables sﬁlmmarize the changes in interest earned and interest paid for the given time periods and
indicate the factors affecting these changes. The first table presents, by major categories of assets and liabilities,
the average balances, the components of the taxable equivalent net interest earnings/spread, and the yield or rate
for the years 2003, 2002 and Z001.

December 31,
I 2003 2002 2001
i Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
| Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance interest Rate
|
|

{in thousands of dollars)
ASSETS

Interest-Earning Assets:

|

Loans and lease financing ! $232,034 $17920 7.72% $221996 $18,768 8§.45% $198,347 $20,101t 10.13%
Taxable investment securitiesl 88889 3,855 4.34% 86,694 4,776 5.51% 83,937 5421 6.46%
Non-taxable investment ‘

securities ! 41,354 2,164 523% 24,595 1405 5.71% 21275 1,180 5.55%
Federal funds sold X 10,480 109 104% 8,707 147 169% 15,539 567 3.65%
Time deposits in otherbanksi 108 3 2.78% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest-Earning Assets} 372,865 24,051 6.45% 341992 25096 7.34% 319,098 27,269 8.55%
Non-interest Earning Asisels:
Cash and due from banks | 11,000 12,192 1,229
Premises and equipment, neti 10,302 10,839 9.197
Other Assets k 14,755 11,270 10,581
Less allowance for loan lcsss“s (3,384) (3,114} (2,914}
Total Non-Interest-Earning As}sets 32,673 31,187 28,093

TOTAL ‘ $405,538 $373,179 $347,191
j —_— [ —— ———
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

|
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:

Demand deposits i $27,845 269 0.97% $25,350 $368 145% §26,217 $566 2.16%
Savings deposits ‘J 108,192 1577 146% 81,544 1905 2.34% 36,219 945 2.61%
Time deposits i 174,691 4839 2.77% 175930 6,551 3.72% 198,106 11,142 562%
Other borrowed money ! 3,643 197 5.41% 2,414 138 5.72% 1,54 1 102 6.62%
Total Interest-Bearing 3
Liabilities . 314,371 6,882 2.19% 285238 8962 3.14% 262,086 12,755 487%
Non-Interest-Bearing Lilabilities H
Demand deposits ! 43 864 41612 39,607
Other liabilities ‘ 2,148 3,445 4,757
Total Non-Interest Bearing r
Liabilities ! 46,012 45,057 44364
Shareholders’ Equity | 45,155 42 884 40,741
TOTAL ‘ $405,538 $373,179 $347,191
(\ —_— ] —————
Net interest earnings/sf:read,
ona taxable equivalenjt basis 17,16 9 4.60% 16,134 4.72 % 14,514 4.55%
Taxable equivalent adjuslment}s:
Loans | 73 83 143
Investment securities ' 585 349 209
Total taxable equivalent adjus;tmem 658 432 352

Net interest earnings ' ‘ $16,511 $15,702 $14,162
|
Note: The taxable eqPivalent adjustment has been computed based on a 34% federal income tax rate and has
given effect to the disallowance of interest expense, for federal income tax purposes, related to certain tax-free
assets. Loans include [nonaccrual loans for all years presented. Interest on loans includes loan fees. Loan fees

included above amou}hted to $959,652 for 2003, $1,160,456 for 2002 and $1,169,047 for 2001.
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The following table shows the change from year to year for each component of the taxable equivalent net
interest margin separated into the amount generated by volume changes and the amount generated by
changes in the yields earned or rates paid.

2003 Compared to 2002 2002 Compared to 2001
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net
(in thousands of dolars) (in thousands of dollars)

Interest Earned on:

Loans and lease financing $849  (51,697) ($848) $2,397  ($3,730)  ($1,333)

Taxable investment securities 121 (1,042) (921) 178 (823) (645)

Non-taxable investment securities 957 (198) 759 184 4] 225

Federal funds sold 30 (68) (38) (249) (171) (420)

Time deposits 3 0 3 0 0 0
Total Interest-Earning Assets $1,960  ($3,005) ($1,045) $2,510  (34,683) ($2,173)
Interest Paid On:

Demand deposits 336 ($133) ($99) ($19) ($179) ($198)

Savings deposits 623 (951) (328) 1,183 (223) 960

Time deposits (46) (1,666) (1,712) (1,247) (3,344) (4,591)

Other borrowed money 70 (11 59 58 (22) 36
Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities $683  ($2,763)  ($2,080) ($25) ($3,768)  ($3,793)
Net Interest Earnings, on a taxable

equivalent basis $1,277 ($242) $1,035 $2,535 (§915) $1,620
Less: taxable equivalent adjustment 226 80
Net Interest Earnings $809 $1,540

The change in interest due to volume has been determined by applying the rate from the earlier year to the
change in average balances outstanding from one year to the next. The change in interest due to rate has been
determined by applying the change in rate from one year to the next to the average balances outstanding in
the later year. The computation of the taxable equivalent adjustment has-given effect to the disallowance of
interest expense, for federal income tax purposes, related to certain tax-free assets.

Non-Interest Income

Non-interest income equaled $4,169,202 in 2003, an increase of $557,871, or 15.4% from 2002. The increase is
attributable primarily to an increase of $297,464 in mortgage banking fees, a $200,694 gain on sale of other
assets and an $52,183 increase in other service charges. The increase in mortgage banking fees was primarily
related to increased mortgage refinancing activity in 2003 due to the historically low mortgage interest rate level
that was present throughout much of 2003. The Corporation anticipates that the mortgage banking fees will
return to the lower level seen in previous years as fewer mortgage refinancing opportunities will be available in
the future. However, these increases were partially offset by a $32,462 decrease in gains on the sale of investment
securities.

Non-interest income in 2002 was $3,611,331, a decrease of 6.6% from 2001 due primarily to a decrease of
$157,122 in service charges on deposit accounts, a decrease of $128,148 in commissions and fees and a decrease
of $112,217 in net gains on the sale of securities. However, these decreases were partially offset by a $217,085
increase in mortgage banking fees.
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Non-Interest Expense
Non-interest expense | \m 2003 was $11,945,933, up $186,906, or 1.6 % from 2002. This increase is attributable
primarily to a $352, 361 or 5.5% increase in salaries and employee benefits. The increase in salaries and employee
benefits was pr1mar11)‘f due to increased personnel expenses per employee. The increase in personnel expenses
was offset by a $207,315 or 19.2% decrease in furniture and fixtures expense. The large decrease in furniture
and fixtures expense was mainly due to decreased depreciation expenses related to major data and computer
upgrades in 2001, :
Non-interest expense in 2002 was $11,759,027, up $997,474, or 9.3 % from 2001. This increase is attributable
primarily to a $656,29$, or 11.5% increase in salaries and employee benefits and a $231,092, or a 27.3% increase
in furniture and equipment expense. The increase in salaries and employee benefits was primarily a result of
increased personnel expenses per employee. The increase in furniture and fixture expense was primarily due to
increased depreciatior{ expenses related to major data and computer upgrades in 2001. Other operating expenses
increased 1.5%, or $3$,408 in 2002 as compared to 2001.
Loan Loss Provision :
The provision for loan losses is the charge to earnings which management feels is necessary to maintain the
allowance for loan losses at a level considered adequate to absorb potential future losses on existing loans and to
provide for uncertainties in the economy. The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is determined by a
continuous evaluation of the loan portfolio. First National utilizes an independent loan review function which
considers loans on their own merits based on factors which include past loan experience, collateral value, off-
balance sheet credit ris}k, and possible effects of prevailing economic conditions. Findings are presented regularly
to management, where other factors such as actual loan loss experience relative to the size and characteristics of
the loan portfolio, deterioration in concentrations of credit, trends in portfolio volumes, delinquencies and non-
performing loans and,iwhen applicable, reports of the regulatory agencies are considered. Management performs
calculations for the minimum. allowance level needed and a final evaluation is made. Note A to the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements provides a detailed description of the Corporation’s loan loss methodology.
I
The provision for loan losses was $1,520,318 in 2003 compared to $1,614,345 in 2002 and $1,047,196 in 2001.
The increase in provision for loan losses in 2003 and 2002 was primarily due to an increase in non-performing
loans as a result of the} general economic downturn in the local markets in which the Corporation competes. The
Bank has experienced an increase in “substandard” and nonperforming commercial real estate loans in particular
over 2003 and 2002. In 2002, a large customer of the Bank experienced financial difficulty, resulting in additional
provisions for loan losses in the fourth quarter of 2002. This additional provision in the fourth quarter of 2002
resulted primarily from a construction and land development loan. Note D to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements provides a detailed analysis of components of Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses and is
incorporated herein bv reference. -
|
Income Taxes |
Income tax expense includes federal and state taxes on earnings. Income taxes were $2,205,371, $1,873,758,
and $1,967,525 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The effective tax rates were 30.6%, 31.5%, and 31.6%
respectively. Note 1 to\the Consolidated Financial Statements provides a detailed analysis of the components

of income tax expense.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Loans |

Management’s focus i 1s to promote loan growth in the Corporation’s target market, emphasizing the expansion
of business in the Corporatlon s trade area. Efforts are taken to maintain a fairly diversified portfolio without
significant concentratfon of risk. Overall loans declined $4,952,065 from December 31, 2002 to December 31,
2003. The decrease injloans was primarily due to an approximately $3.0 million decrease in construction and
land development loans a $2.8 million decrease in loans to individuals and a $1.2 million decrease in other loans
at the year-end 2003 as compared to the year-end 2002. However, these decreases were offset by increases of
approximately $2.0 million in real estate loans, and $0.8 million commercial and industrial loans as of December
31, 2003 as compared !to December 31, 2002.
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Over the last three years, average total loans and leases increased by $10.0 million or 4.5% in 2003, by $23.6
million or 11.9% in 2002, by $6.1 million or 3.2% in 2001. The growth in deposits was the primary support for
this continuing increase in loan demand.

Loan Quality

Credit risk represents the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties
failed completely to perform as contracted and any collateral or security proved to be of no value. Concentrations
of credit risk or types of collateral arising from financial instruments exist in relation to certain groups of
customers. A group concentration arises when a number of counterparties have similar economic characteristics
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or
other conditions. The registrant does not have a significant concentration to any individual customer or
counterparty. The major concentrations of credit risk for the registrant arise by collateral type in relation to
loans and credit commitments. The only significant concentration that exists is in loans secured by real estate
and agricultural related loans. Among the loans secured by real estate, the registrant has a concentration of
loans secured by hotel and motel properties. Although the registrant has a loan portfolio diversified by type of
risk, the ability of its customers to honor their contracts is to some extent dependent upon their regional economic
condition. A geographic concentration arises because the registrant grants commercial, real estate and consumer
loans primarily to customers in Giles, Marshall and Lincoln Counties, Tennessee. In order to mitigate the
impact of credit risk, management strives to identify loans experiencing difficulty early enough to correct the
problems and to maintain an allowance for loan losses at a level management believes is sufficient to cover
inherent losses in the loan portfolio.

The amounts of loans and leases outstanding, including unearned income, at the indicated dates are shown in
the following table according to type of loan.

LOAN PORTFOLIO
December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(inthousands of dollars)

Construction and land development $ 7,859 § 10,901 $ 8,879 § 4,256 $ 5,610

Commercial and Industrial 21,803 20,999 19,169 22,254 24,908
Agricultural 7,014 7,871 8,233 7,435 9,182
Real estate - farmland 19,463 24,019 23,474 23,028 20,627
Real estate - residential 60,619 59,479 52,311 51,504 49,667
Real estate - nonresidential, nonfarm 84,236 78,784 60,773 47,285 39,436
Installment - individuals 24,065 26,845 31,040 35,001 37,726
Other loansm 3,485 4,660 5,482 7,539 6,054

$ 228,544 $ 233,558 $ 209,361 $ 198,302 $ 193,210

(n Includes student loans, non-taxable loans, overdrafts, and all other loans not included in any of the designated categories
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The following table prejsents the maturity distribution of selected loan categories at December 31, 2003 (excluding
residential mortgage, home equity, installment-individual loans, and lease financing).

Due after one
Dueinone yearbutbefore Due after five
| year or less five years years Total

(inthousands of dofHars)

Construction and land development  $ 6,136 . § 1,723 $ -8 7,859
Commercial an;d industrial 16,771 4,410 622 21,803
Agricultural | 6,024 877 113 7,014
Real estate-farr%lland 11,028 7,830 605 19,463
Real estate-noniresidential, nonfarm 13,970 42,272 27,994 84,236
Total selected l(})ans 53,929 57,112 29,334 140,375

The table below summarizes the percentages of the loans selected for use in the preceding table falling into each

of the indicated maturity ranges, and the sensitivity of such loans to interest rate changes for those with maturities
greater than one year,jall as of December 31, 2003.

! Due after one
i Due in one  year butbefore Due after five

f year or less five years years Total

Percent of total selected loans 38.42% 40.69% 20.90% 100.00%
Cumulative percent of total 38.42% 79.10% 100.00%
Sensitivity of loans to changes in
interest rates-lojans due after one
year |

Fixed rate Ioans $ 51,823 § 6,559 $ 58,382

Variable raté loans 5,289 22,775 28,064

Total ! $ 57,112 $ 29,334 § 86,446
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Summary of Loan Loss Experience
The following table summarizes loan and lease balances at the end of each period and daily averages, changes in
the allowance for possible losses arising from loans charged off and recoveries on loans previously charged off,
and additions to the allowance which have been charged to expense.

For year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Amount of net loans and (in thousands of dollars)
lease financing outstanding
atend of period $ 228,303 § 233,255 $§ 208,917 § 197,348 § 191,963
Daily average amount of
loans and leases $ 232,034 $ 221,996 $ 198,347 § 192,215 $§ 188,967

Balance of allowance for

possible loan losses at

beginning of period $ 3,810 $ 3,088 $ 2,884 % 3,103 $ 3,150
Less charge-offs:

Construction and land

development 731 11 - - -
Commercial and industrial 433 335 156 283 128
Agricultural 286 85 61 121 377
Real estate-farmland 35 2 - 47 -
Real estate-residential 45 117 81 10 31
Real estate-nonresidential,
nonfarm 181 60 - 5 -
Installment-Individiuals 511 612 858 533 786
Other loans 14 - - - -
2,236 1,222 1,156 999 1,322

Add recoveries:
Construction and land

development 13 11 - - -
Commercial and Industrial 63 47 67 75 59
Agricultural 14 13 26 9 42
Real estate-farmland - 2 - - -
Real estate-residential 4 4 1 2 74
Real estate-nonresidential,
nonfarm 1 8 - - -
Installment-Individiuals 259 245 219 232 239
Other loans 1 - - - -
355 330 313 318 414
Net loans charged off 1,881 892 843 681 908
Provision charged to expense 1,520 1,614 1,047 462 861
Balance at end of period $ 3,449 $ 3,810 $ 3,088 S 2,884 $ 3,103

Net charge-offs as percent of

average loans outstanding: 0.81% 0.40% 0.43% 0.35% 0.48%
Net charge-offs as percent of:

Provision for loan losses 123.8% 55.3% 80.5% 147.4% 105.5%

Allowance for loan losses 54.5% 23.4% 27.3% 23.6% 29.3%

Allowance atend of period to
loans, net of unearned income 1.51% 1.63% 1.48% 1.46% 1.62%

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




Net loans charged-off increased to $1,881,267 in 2003 from $892,306 in 2002 after an increase from $843,231 in
2001. As mentioned earlier, the slowing economy in the Corporation’s market area contributed to the increase in
loans charged-off in 2003 and 2002, primarily in construction and land development loans and commercial
loans. Net loan 1ossesi for 2003 consisted of net losses on real estate loans of $974,446, net losses on loans to
individuals of $251,528, net losses on commercial and industrial loans of $370,489, net losses on agricultural
loans of $271,693 and net losses on other loans of $13,111. The allowance for loan and lease losses at the end of
2003 was $3.45 milliojn, or 1.51% of outstanding loans and leases, as compared to $3.81 million or 1.63% of
outstanding loans and leases and $3.09 million or 1.48% of outstanding loans and leases in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Net loan§ charged-off amounted to 0.81% of average total loans outstanding in 2003, 0.40% in
2002 and 0.43% in 2001. Refzrence is made to Note D to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further
detail regarding charg“e-offs and recoveries by category.
|

The allowance for loan losses was 1.43 times the balance of nonaccrual loans at the end of 2003, 0.53 in 2002
and 1.43 in 2001. Nonaccrual loans decreased $4.83 million from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003.
The large nonaccrual loan balance in 2002 was principally related to two credit lines of the Bank. The largest
line placed on non-ac%:rual status was a large United States Department of Agriculture (“USDA”) guaranteed
loan that was placed bn nonaccrual status in the second quarter of 2002. Eighty percent of the principal and
accrued interest of the loan is guaranteed by the United States Department of Agriculture. During the second
quarter of 2003, the bank foreclosed on the underlying collateral and received a payment from the USDA for
eighty percent of the estimated shortfall between the remaining principal balance and the estimated net realizable
value of the underlying collateral. This foreclosure led to the large increase in other real estate owned at December
31, 2003 as compared to December 31, 2002. Management does not believe that the underlying collateral is
sufﬁc1ent to secure the entire unguaranteed portion of the loan. Management has estimated the credit exposure
on the loan and 1ncluded the exposure in its allowance for loan losses calculation for December 31, 2003. The
second large line plach on nonaccrual status consists primarily of commercial real estate and land development
loans. This line was pLaced on nonaccrual status during the fourth quarter of 2002 and resulted in much of the
charged-off real estate loans in 2003. Net charged-off loans exceeded the provision for loan losses by $360,949
in 2003. The provision for loan losses exceeded net loan charge-offs by $722,039 in 2002, and by $203,965 in
2001. Management believes that the allowance for possible loan losses as of December 31, 2003 is adequate.
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The following table sets out respectively the allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses and the percentage of
loans by category to total loans outstanding at the end of each of the years indicated.

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

Allowance applicable to :
Construction and land development § 111 $ 559  § 16 § 4 § 4

Commercial loans 454 581 669 607 895
Agriculture loans 177 g8 142 46 449
Real estate-farmland 160 109 195 110 64
Real estate-residential 613 470 425 139 270
Real estate-nonresidential

nonfarm 1,229 766 281 312 115
Individual loans 699 1,221 1,342 1,666 1,306
Other loans 6 16 18 0 0

$ 34495 §$ 3,810 § 3,088 § 2884 § 3,103

Percentages of loans by
category to total loans:

Construction and land development 3.44% 4.67% 4.24% 2.15% 2.20%

Commercial loans 9.54% 8.99% 9.15% 11.22% 12.89%
Agriculture loans 3.07% 3.37% 3.93% 3.75% 4.75%
Real estate-farmland 8.52% 10.28% 11.21% 11.61% 11.58%
Real estate-residential 26.52% 25.47% 24.99% 25.97% 25.00%
Real estate-nonresidential

nonfarm 36.86% 33.73% . 29.03% 23.85% 20.92%
Individual loans 10.53% 11.49% 14.83% 17.65% 19.53%
Other loans 1.52% 2.00% 2.62% 3.80% 3.13%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Non-Performing Assets
Non-performing assets include nonaccrual loans, loans restructured because of a debtor’s financial difficulties,
other real estate owned, and loans past due ninety days or more as to interest or principal payment.

Nonaccrual loans are those loans for which management has discontinued accrual of interest because there
“exists significant uncertainty as to the full and timely collection of either principal or interest or such loans have
become contractually past due 90 days with respect to principal or interest, unless such loans are well secured
and in the process of collection.

From December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003, nonaccruing loans decreased by 66.7% to $2.4 million following
an increase of 234.7% at year-end 2002 as compared to year-end 2001. The decrease in 2003 and the increase in
2002 in nonaccrual loans were primarily the result of the two large credit lines discussed previously under the
section titled “Summary of Loan Loss Experience.” There were approximately $62,000 in restructured loans
that were in compliance with the modified terms at year-end 2003. There were approximately $464,000 in loans
restructured and in compliance with the modified terms at year-end 2002. Other real estate owned, consisting of
properties acquired through foreclosures or deeds in lieu thereof, totaled $4,329,000 at December 31, 2003, for
an increase of 283.4% from December 31, 2002. The large increase in other real estate owned in 2003 was
primarily related to the foreclosure on certain real estate involving the USDA guaranteed loan discussed previously.
Management anticipates that other real estate owned will continue at higher than historical levels until this
property is sold. Other real estate owned totaled $1,129,000 as of December 31, 2002, for an increase of 281.4%
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from 2001. The large increase in other real estate owned in 2002 resulted primarily from the Bank taking possession
during the fourth qua}rter of 2002 of commercial real estate property that secured a note upon which the debtor
defaulted. 1

Loans past due ninet§‘/ days or more totaled $247,974 as of December 31, 2003, for a decrease of $147,000, or
37.2% as compared to the same period of 2002. Loans past due ninety days or more totaled $394,898 as of
December 31, 2002, fpr a decrease of 1.7% over the same period of 2001. All major credit lines and troubled
loans are reviewed regularly by a committee of the Board of Directors. Management believes that the Bank’s
non-performing loans have been accounted for in the methodology for calculating the allowance for loan and
lease losses and that rilon-performing loans contain no losses that would materially affect the allowance.

The following table sdlmmari:zes the company’s non-performing assets, loans past due ninety days or more and
restructured loans. |

T December 31,

‘ 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
! (in thousands of dolars)
Nonaccrual loanfs $ 2410 $ 7,237 $ 2,166 $§ 1,116 $ 3413
Toubled debt resitructurings 62 464 0 0 0
Other real estate owned 4,329 1,129 296 263 99
Loans past due njinety days or
more as to interest or
principal payme;nt 248 395 402 378 186

The amount of interest income actually recognized on the nonaccrual loans during 2003, 2002 and 2001, was
$96,324, $227,489, and $68,023 respectively. The additional amount of interest income that would have been
recorded during 2003L 2002 and 2001, if the above amounts had been current in accordance with their original
terms was $219,738, $280,896, and $258,474, respectively.

|
Loans that are classified as “substandard” or worse by the Bank represent loans to which management questions
the borrowers’ ability/to comply with the present loan repayment terms. As of December 31, 2003, there were
approximately $11,144,000 in loans that were classified as “substandard” or worse and accruing interest. This
compares to approximately $13,615,000 in loans that were classified as “substandard” or worse and accruing
interest as of December 31, 2002. As of December 31, 2003, management was not aware of any specifically
identified loans, other} than those included in the categories discussed above that represent significant potential
problems or that management has serious doubts as to the borrower’s ability to comply with the present repayment
terms. The Corporation believes that it and First National maintain adequate audit standards, exercise appropriate
internal controls andi conduct regular and thorough loan reviews. However, the risk inherent in the lending
business results in periodic charge-offs of loans. The Corporation maintains an allowance for loan losses that it
believes to be adequate to absorb reasonably foreseeable losses in the loan portfolio. The officers of the Bank
evaluate, on a quarter}ly basis, the risk in the portfolio to determine an adequate allowance for loan losses.
|

The evaluation includ{es analyses of historical performance, the level of nonperforming and rated loans, specific
analyses of problem loans, loan activity since the previous quarter, loan review reports, consideration of current
economic conditions and other pertinent information. The evaluation is reviewed by the Audit Committee of
the Board of Director:s of the Bank. Also, as a matter of policy, internal classifications of loans are performed
on a routine and continuing basis. The section of this report entitled - “Critical Accounting Policies” as well as
Note A of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contains more information pertaining to the

. \
Corporation’s allowance for loan and lease losses.

|
|
|
\
|
|
!
|
i
|
|
i
|
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Securities

The securities portfolio consists primarily of U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S government agency securities,
marketable bonds of states, counties and municipalities, and highly rated corporate bonds. Management uses
investment securities to assist in maintaining proper interest rate sensitivity in the balance sheet, to provide
securities to pledge as collateral for certain public funds and to provide an alternative investment for available
funds. '

The following table sets forth the carrying amount of securities at the dates indicated:
December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands of dollars)
Available-for-sale )
U.S. Treasury securities $ 100 $ 101 $ 251
U.S Government A gencies 68,028 52,442 65,597
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 65,662 28,810 22,670
Other debt securities 25,797 31,073 26,365
Other securities 2,066 3,419 1,865

§ 161,653 $§ 115,845 $ 116,748

Held-to-maturity
U.S. Treasury securities $ - $ - $ 101
Obligations of states and - - 249
political subdivisions
Other debt securities - - -
0 0 249

Total securities $ 161,653 $ 115,845 $ 116,997

Note: Other securities in the above table includes stock of government agencies, stock of corporations, and
mutual funds.
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The following table sefts forth the maturities of securities at December 31, 2003 and the average yields of such
securities (calculated on the tasis of the amortized cost and effective yields).

U.S Treasuries State and
and Government Political Other
Agencies Subdivisions Securities Total

|
1 (in thousands of dollars)

Available-for-sale

Within one year: \
Amount | $2,613 $4,354 $9,861 $16,828
Yield | 4.04% 6.21% 5.24% 5.30%

|
|
i
|
i

After one but witbin
five years: T

Amount “ $61,165 $15,430 $13,836 $90,431
Yield j 3.36% 5.86% 5.87% 4.17%

After five but within

ten years: ;
Amount | $3,176 $30,717 $0 $33,893
Yield : 4.26% 4.95% 0.00% 4.89%

|

After ten years: ‘
Amount }
Yield ‘

$553 $14,009 $1,054 §15,616
3.45% 5.31% 7.24% 5.37%

The above table shows yields on the tax-exempt obligations to be computed on a taxable equivalent basis. The
maturity date used in the above table for amortizing securities (e.g. mortgage-backed securities) is the average
maturity date. ;

Total average securities increased by $19.0 million or 17.0% to $130.3 million during 2003 as compared to
$111.3 million for 2002. Average taxable investment securities increased by $2.2 million or 2.5% and average
non-taxable investment securities increased by $16.8 million or 68.2%, to account for the overall increase in
average investments. The total securities portfolio increased $45.8 million or 40.1% to $159.9 million at the end
of 2003 as compared to the end of 2002. The large increase in the total securities portfolio in 2003 resulted
primarily from the higher deposit growth and the decline in total loans the Bank experienced in 2003. Deposits
grew by approximatel;y $31.3 million in 2003, while loans declined by approximately $5.0 million over the same
period. The excess gr;owth in deposits over loans in 2003 was primarily invested in securities.

Deposits i

The Corporation’s prlmary source of funds is customer deposits, including large certificates of deposits. Aggregate
average deposits increased by $30.2 million or 9.3% to $354.5 million in 2003 by $24.3 million or 8.1% to $324.4
million in 2002, and by $30.9 million or 11.5% to $300.1 million in 2001. Most of the deposit growth experienced
by the Corporation i 1n 2003 and 2002 has been in accounts that are interest sensitive, especially savings deposits.
Average savings dep031ts increased $26.6 million in 2003 and $45.3 million in 2002.
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The average amount of deposits for the periods indicated is summarized in the following table:

~For year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
(in thousands of dollars. cxcept percents)
Noninterest bearing
demand deposits...... § 43,864 0.00% $ 41,612 0.00% § 39,607 0.00%
Interest bearing
demand deposits... ... 27,845 0.97% 25,350 1.45% 26,217 2.16%
Savings deposits........ 108,192 1.46% 81,544 2.34% 36,219 2.61%
Time deposits of
$100,000 or more..... 77,566 3.03% 70,573 3.90% 80,528 5.52%
Other time deposits..... 97,125 2.56% 105,357 3.64% 117,581 5.69%
Total interest bearing
deposits................. 310,728 2.15% 282,824 3.13% 260,545 4.85%
Total deposits $ 354,592 $ 324,436 $ 300,152

Remaining maturities of time certificates of deposits of $100,000 or more outstanding at December 31, 2003,
are summarized as follows (in thousands of dollars):

3 months or less $ 33,814
Over 3 months through 6 months 10,975
Over 6 months through 12 months 14,649
Over 1 year 24,172

Total $ 83,610

Other funds were invested in other earning assets such as federal funds at minimum levels necessary for operating
needs and to maintain adequate liquidity.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Neither the Corporation nor the Bank have historically incurred off-balance sheet obligations through the use
of or investment in off-balance sheet derivative financial instruments of structured finance or special purpose
entities organized as corporations, partnerships or limited liability companies or trusts. However, the Bank is a
party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing
needs of its customers. The following table summarizes the First National’s involvement in financial instruments
with off-balance-sheet risk as of December 31:

Amount
2003 2002 2001
Commitments to extend credit $ 32,337,720 $ 26,687,814 $ 22,471,733
Standby letters of credit 1,696,848 661,261 694,489
Mortgage loans sold with repurchase
requirements outstanding 7,749,111 6,681,155 2,375,525

Liquidity and Interest Rate Sensitivity Management

The primary functions of asset/liability management are to assure adequate liquidity and maintain an appropriate
balance between interest sensitive earning assets and interest bearing hiabilities. Liquidity management involves
the ability to meet the cash flow requirements of customers who may be either depositors wanting to withdraw

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION




funds or borrowers needing assurance that sufficient funds will be available to meet their credit needs. Interest
rate sensitivity managq‘:rnent seeks to avoid fluctuating net interest margins and to enhance consistent growth of
net interest income through periods of changing interest rates.

Marketable investmerllt securities, particularly those of shorter maturities, are the principal source of asset
liquidity. Securities maturing in one year or less amounted to $16.8 million at December 31, 2003, representing
10.7% of the investment securities portfolio, a decrease from the 12.3% level of 2002. Management believes that
the investment securities portfolio, along with additional sources of liquidity, including federal funds sold, and
maturing loans provides the Corporation with adequate liquidity to meet its funding needs.

The Bank also has feci.eral funds lines with several of its correspondent banks. These lines may be drawn upon
if the bank has short-term liquidity needs. As of December 31, 2003, the Bank had $30 million total available
under these lines. At December 31, 2003 the Bank had purchased fed funds of $2.2 million from these lines at an
interest rate of 1.36%. lThe average daily federal funds purchased for 2003 equaled $22,000 at an average interest
rate of 1.49%. The Ba}nk purchased no federal funds during 2002 and 2001.

Interest rate sensitivity varies with different types of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities. Overnight
federal funds, on which rates change daily, and loans which are tied to the prime rate differ considerably from
long term investment $ecuriti<:s and fixed rate loans. Similarly, time deposits over $100,000 and money market
certificates are much more interest-sensitive than are savings accounts. For its repricing gap analysis, the Bank
classifies fifty percent pf money market accounts as repricing in 4 to 12 months, with the remaining fifty percent
classified as repricing i}n over one year but through three years. Regular savings and NOW accounts are classified
by the Bank as sixty percent repricing over one year through three years, twenty percent repricing over 3 years
through 5 years, and t}‘ie remaining twenty percent repricing over 5 years. At December 31, 2003 the Corporation
had a total of $59.4 million in certificates of $100,000 or more which would mature in one year or less. In
addition, consumer certificates of deposits of smaller amounts generally mature every six to twelve months,

while money market deposit accounts mature on demand.
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The Corporation has certain contractual obligations summarized in the table below.

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years S years
Long-Term Debt Obligations $ 4,639,973 $ 304,609 $ 461,147 $ 482,695 $ 3,391,522
Operating Lease Obligations 112,900 27,600 40,800 12,000 32,500
Total $ 4,752,873 $ 332,209 h) 501,947 $ 494,695 $ 3,424,022

Interest rate sensitivity gaps by maturities are summarized below. Matured time deposits are included as time
deposits maturing in 0-30 days in the following table.

December 31, 2003 91-365 +1-3 +3-5 Over S
$ in thousands 0-30 davs  31-90 days days years vears years Total
Interest-sensitive assets:
Loans and leases $ 45,527 $ 16,653 $ 59,703 $ 81,306 $ 16,433 $ 5,300 $£224.922
Taxable securities 3,749 11,494 33,703 22,033 15,247 5,932 92,158
Nontaxable securities - 765 3,080 6,927 - 8,589 45,149 64,510
Federal funds sold 400 - - - - - 400
Total $ 49,676 $ 28,912 $ 96,486 $110,266 $ 40,269 $ 56,381 $ 381,990
Interest-sensitive liabilities:
Demand deposits - - - 17,805 5,935 5,935 29,675
Savings - - 40,031 56,177 5,381 5,381 106,970
Time 53,633 19,922 68,953 24,225 16,322 - 183,055
Federal funds purchased 2,217 - - - - - 2,217
Other borrowed funds 29 59 216 461 483 3,392 4,640
Total 55,879 19,981 109,200 98,668 28,121 14,708 326,557
Interest sensitivity gap $ (6,203) $ 8,931 $(12,714) $ 11,598 $ 12,148 $ 41,673 $ 55,433
Cumulative gap $ (6,203) $ 2,728 $ (9,986) $ 1,612 $ 13,760 $ 55,433 $ 55,433
Cumulative RSA/RSL 0.889 1.036 0.946 1.006 1.044 1.170 1.170
Ratio of cumulative gap
to earning assets -1.62% 0.71% -2.61% 0.42% 3.60% 14.51% 14.51%

As seen in the table above, the Corporation is in a negative cumulative gap position in the one year or less
interval, indicating that it has more rate sensitive liabilities which will reprice within one year than it has rate
sensitive assets that will reprice within one year. This normally indicates that the Corporation would be in
position to reprice its rate-sensitive liabilities (deposits) more quickly than it would its rate-sensitive assets (loans
and investments). During periods of declining interest rates the negative gap would work to the Corporation’s
advantage, widening the net interest spread between assets and liabilities. To the contrary, however, during
periods of rising rates the negative gap would be to the Corporation’s disadvantage, with the net interest spread
shrinking. Theoretically, a gap position of near zero would produce minimum fluctuations of the net interest
spread over long periods of time, negating the effect of rising and falling interest rate environments. A positive
gap position would essentially reverse the effects of rising and falling rates.

It is management’s objective to minimize this gap through the asset/liability management process. The gap
position is closely monitored, and investment decisions and deposit and loan pricing structures are configured
with the gap position in mind. The gap table is updated at least monthly or more often if considered necessary.
Asset/Liability management limits the ratio of rate sensitive assets to rate sensitive liabilities that mature or
reprice in one year or less to not less than 0.70 and not more than 1.20. At December 31, 2003, the RSA/RSL
was 0.95 at the one year or less level, a negative gap position. If the RSA/RSL ratio is outside this parameter,
management will take action to review asset and liability mixes, maturities, yields, and costs, review objectives
and strategies, and determine if changes are needed.
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Capital Resources, Capital and Dividends

Regulatory requirements place certain constraints on the Corporation’s capital. In order to maintain appropriate
ratios of equity to total assets, a corresponding level of capital growth must be achieved. Growth in total
average assets was 8.7% in 2003 and 7.5% in 2002. The corresponding percentage increase in average equity
amounted to 5.3% in 2003 and 5.3% in 2002.

The Corporation’s equity capital was $46,079,832 at December 31, 2003 as compared to $44,002,249 at December
31,2002, for an increa§e of 4.7% over the period. The Corporation’s equity-to-average asset ratio (net of unrealized
gain/loss on investment securities) was 10.7% in 2003, as compared to 11.1% for 2002. Management believes
that the Corporation’s 2003 earnings were sufficient to keep pace with its growth in total assets. The Corporation
expects to maintain a\capltal to asset ratio that reflects financial strength and conforms to current regulatory
guidelines. The ratio of dividends to net income was 54.2 % in 2003, 66.4% in 2002, and 61.0% in 2001.

As of December 31, 2003, the authorized number of common shares was 10 million shares, with 1,651,195
shares issued and outstanding.

The FRB, the OCC aind the FDIC have issued risk-based capital guidelines for U.S. banking organizations.
These guidelines provide a uniform capital framework that is sensitive to differences in risk profiles among

banking companies. |
Under these guidelinejs, total capital consists of Tier I capital (core capital, primarily stockholders’ equity) and
Tier 1I capital (supplémentary capital, including certain qualifying debt instruments and the loan loss reserve).
Assets are assigned risk weights ranging from 0% to 100% depending on the level of credit risk normally associated
with such assets. Off—balancc sheet items (such as commitments to make loans) are also included in assets
through the use of conversion factors established by the regulators and are assigned risk weights in the same
manner as on-balancq sheet items. Banking institutions were expected to achieve a Tier I capital to risk-weighted
assets ratio of at least 4.00%, a total capital (Tier I plus Tier II) to risk-weighted assets ratio of at least 8.00%,
and a Tier I capital to total asszts ratio (leverage ratio) of at least 4.00%. As of December 31, 2003, the Corporation
and the Bank, had ratios exceeding the regulatory requirements to be classified as “well capitalized,” the highest
regulatory capital rating. The Corporation’s and First National’s ratios are illustrated in Note M to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

|
Management is not aw)are of any known trends, events, uncertainties or current recommendations by the regulatory
authorities that would have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s liquidity, capital resources or operations.

|

\
Quantitative and Quahtative Disclosures About Market Risk
The Corporation’s primary place of exposure to market risk is interest rate volatility of its loan portfolio,
investment portfolio, jand its interest bearing deposit liabilities. Fluctuations in interest rates ultimately impact
both the level of income and zxpense recorded on a large portion of the Corporation’s assets and liabilities, and
the market value of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, other than those which possess a
short term to maturit}y.

Simulation modelingiis used to evaluate both the level of interest rate sensitivity as well as potential balance
sheet strategies. Important elements in this modeling process include the mix of floating rate versus fixed rate
assets and liabilities; the repricing/maturing volumes and rates of the existing balance sheet; and assumptions
regarding future volumes, maturity patterns and pricing under varying interest rate scenarios. As of December
31, 2003, a -200 basis|point rate shock was estimated to decrease net interest income approximately $1,479,000,
or 9.7%, over the nexit twelve months, as compared to rates remaining stable. This is outside the Bank’s Asset/
Liability policy limit of -7.0%. However, the -200 basis point rate shock would increase the current present value
of the Bank’s equity by 2.9%, well within the policy limits of -25%. Also, a +200 basis point rate shock would
decrease net interest income approximately $293,000, or 1.9%, and would decrease the current present value of
the Bank’s equity byi 7.5%, both within policy guidelines. This simulation analysis assumes that NOW and
savings accounts have a lower correlation to changes in market interest rates than do loans, investment securities
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and time deposits. The simulation analysis takes into account the call features of certain investment securities
based upon the rate shock, as well as estimated prepayments on loans. The simulation analysis assumes no
change in the Bank’s asset/liability composition due to the inherent uncertainties of specific conditions and
corresponding actions of management.

Although the Bank’s net interest income exposure is outside its policy limits at December 31, 2003, it is well
within its current value of equity exposure under the same -200 basis point rate shock. A drop in market interest
rates of 200 basis points would leave all non-maturity deposits at their floor levels, since they were already below
2.0% at December 31, 2003. This is the primary cause for the Bank’s net interest income exposure being above
the policy limits at the end of 2003. Management has decided to take no significant action at this time to comply
with its policy limits regarding net interest income exposure since market interest rates are at historically low
levels and the likelihood of a 200 basis point drop in market interest rates is felt to be very unlikely, as well as the
fact the Bank is well under its policy limit regarding the current present value of its equity.

More about market risk is included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis under the heading “Liquidity
and Interest Rate Sensitivity Management.” All market risk sensitive instruments described within that section
have been entered into by the Corporation for purposes other than trading. The Corporation does not hold
market risk sensitive instruments for trading purposes. The Corporation is not subject to any foreign currency
exchange or commodity price risk.

The following table provides information about the Corporation’s financial instruments that are sensitive to
changes in interest rates as of December 31, 2003.

Expected Maturity Date for year ending December 31, 2003
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total Fair Value
(in thousands of dollars)

Interest-sensitive assets:
Loans and leases:

Variable rate $11,978 $ 1,814 3 6066 $ 1,910 $ 2,630 $25,335 $44,333 $44.325
Average interest rate 5.24% 4.78% 5.06% 5.58% 5.17% 5.05% 5.12%

Fixed rate . $69.270 $42,817 $39,639 $ 9,313 $13,949 $ 7,982 182,970 183,345
Average interest rate 7.61% 7.43% 7.33% 7.52% 6.73% 7.22% 7.42%

Securities 52,791 15,501 13,559 17,696 6,140 51,081 156,768 159,587
Average interest rate 3.74% 5.95% 4.34% 3.91% 5.33% 5.18% 4.56%

Federal funds sold 400 400 400
Average interest rate 0.90% 0.90%

Interest-sensitive liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposits:

Variable rate 140,817 1,183 - - - - 142,000 136,241
Average interest rate 1.25% 1.05% 1.24%

Fixed rate 130,391 21,829 1,807 6,412 9,288 30 169,756 171,601
Average interest rate 2.33% 2.98% 3.66% 4.57% 3.71% 4.40% 2.59%

Long-term borrowings 304 239 222 235 248 3,392 4,640 4,823
Average interest rate 5.76% 5.70% 5.57% 5.58% 5.59% 5.15% 5.28%

Federal funds sold 2,217 2,217 2,217
Average interest rate 1.40% : 1.40%

Securities in the above table with call features are shown as maturing on the call date if they are likely to be
called in the current interest rate environment.
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Market and Dividend Information
Common stock of First Pulaski National Corporation is not traded through an organized exchange but is
traded between local i}ndividuals. As such, price quotations are not available on NASDAQ or any other quotation
service. The following trading prices for 2003 and 2002 represent trades of which the Corporation was aware,
primarily through its} officers and directors and those of the Bank, and do not necessarily include all trading
transactions for the period and may not necessarily reflect actual stock values.

|

: Trading Prices  Dividends Paid

" Ist Quarter, 2003 $48.00 - 50.00 50.41

' 2nd Quarter, 2003 $49.00 - 50.00 $0.41
" 3rd Quarter, 2003 $49.00 - 50.00 $0.41
| 4th Quarter, 2003 $49.00 - 50.00 $0.42
| Total Annual Dividend, 2003 §1.65
|

| st Quarter, 2002 $49.00 - 50.00 $0.41
' 2nd Quarter, 2002 $50.00 - 50.00 $0.41
© 3rd Quarter, 2002 $45.00 - 50.00 $0.41
| 4th Quarter, 2002 $44.00 - 50.00 $0.42
‘ Total Annual Dividend, 2002 $1.65

There are approximat;ely 1,442 shareholders of record of the Corporation’s common stock as of February 29,
2004. 3

\

The Corporation reviews its dividend policy at least annually. The amount of the dividend, while in the
Corporation’s sole discretior;, depends in part upon the performance of First National. The Corporation’s
ability to pay dividends is restricted by federal laws and regulations applicable to bank holding companies, and
by Tennessee laws relating to the payment of dividends by Tennessee corporations. Because substantially all
operations are conducted through its subsidiaries, the Corporation’s ability to pay dividends also depends on the
ability of the subsidiafies to pay dividends to the Corporation. The ability of First National to pay cash dividends
to the Corporation i$ restricted by applicable regulations of the OCC and the FDIC. For a more detailed

discussion of these lir;nitations see “Supervision and Regulation - Payment of Dividends.”
|
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Selected Financial Data

The table below contains selected financial data for the Corporation for the last five years. All weighted average
outstanding share data is computed after giving retroactive effect of the merger of the Corporation and Belfast
Holding Company in 2001. Note O to the Consolidated Financial Statements which follows shows figures for
basic earnings per share and gives effect to dilutive stock options in determining diluted earnings per share.
Total average equity and total average assets exclude unrealized gains or losses on investment securities.

For Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(dollars in thousands)
Interest income $ 23,393 § 24,664 $§ 26919 $ 25,732 § 24,034
Interest expense 6,881 8,962 12,756 11,992 9,962
Net interest income 16,512 15,702 14,163 13,740 14,072
Loan loss provision 1,520 1,614 1,047 462 861
Non-interest income 4,169 3,611 3,868 3,043 2,777
Non-interest expense 11,946 11,759 10,762 10,002 10,188
Income before income tax 7,215 5,940 6,222 6,319 5,800
Net income 5,010 4,066 4,255 4,272 3,915
Total assets $418,428 $ 381,670 §$ 363,632 §$324,731 §$301,105
Loans, net of unearned interest 228,303 233,255 208,917 197,348 192,181
Securities 159,907 114,161 115,550 98,524 75,992
Deposits 362,591 331,248 316,634 280,077 258,029
Per Share Data:
Net Income-Basic § 305 % 249 § 2.61 $ 2.61 §$ 2.35
Net Income-Diluted 3.03 2.47 2.60 2.59 2.34
Cash dividends paid 1.65 1.65 1.57 1.59 1.59
Total average equity $ 42934 $ 41,083 $ 39461 $ 38,899 $ 39,149
Total average assets 400,811 370,669 347,191 312,178 302,900
Total year-end assets 418,428 381,670 363,632 324,731 300,888
Total long-term debt 4,640 3,562 1,456 1,659 1,849
Ratios
Avg equity to avg assets 10.71% 11.08% 11.37% 12.46% 12.92%
Return on average equity 11.67% 9.90% 10.78% 10.98% 10.00%
Return on average assets 1.25% 1.10% 1.23% 1.37% 1.29%
Dividend payout ratio 54.23% 66.38% 61.05% 60.95% 67.83%

The basic earnings per share data and the diluted earnings per share data in the above table are based on the
following weighted average number of shares outstanding:

For Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Basic 1,644,008 1,635,777 1,632,054 1,639,602 1,666,429
Diluted 1,653,943 1,646,949 1,636,311 1,646,525 1,672,942
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Executive Officers |
Below are the Executive Officers of both the Bank and the Corporation.

Name . Position with the Bank Position with the Corporation

James T. Cox - Chairman of the Board Chairman of the Board

Mark A. Hayes \ Chief Executive Officer and President Chief Executive Officer and President
Edwin D. Moore | Executive Vice-President None

Tracy Porterfield Cashier and Chief Financial Officer Cashier and Chief Financial Officer
Donald A. Haney Chief Operating Officer None
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